
   

6/12/2023; Page 1 of 3 

 
 

 

*REVISED 6/12/23 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
Monday, June 12, 2023 

5:30 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 

Eastmont Administration Office 
 
 

The Eastmont School District is governed by a board of five directors.  The Eastmont Board of Directors sets the direction of 
the District by establishing goals, objectives, and policies to guide the superintendent who supervises all programs and staff. 
The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that the Eastmont School District is adequately financed to meet those goals, 
objectives, and policies; for monitoring the progress of the District; and for evaluating the performance of the superintendent. 
Each board member has a fiduciary role to the District and, as such is responsible for using his or her best judgment in 
conducting the affairs of the District. 
The Board generally meets at 5:30 p.m. on the second and fourth Monday of each month at either a school site or the 
Administration Office Board Room at 800 Eastmont Avenue, East Wenatchee. On holidays, or when a conflict occurs, a meeting 
may be held at an alternate time and/or date with proper notification given to the media.   
The complete 2022-23 Board Meeting Schedule is available at www.eastmont206.org under the About Us/School Board tab. 

 

 
 

 NOTICE is hereby given that the Eastmont School District No. 206 Board of Directors, 
Douglas County, Washington will hold a regular meeting on Monday, June 12, 2023 beginning 
at 5:30 p.m. at Eastmont Administration Office Board Room, 800 Eastmont Avenue, East 
Wenatchee for the purpose of considering and acting upon the following agenda items: 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
II. APPROVE AGENDA/MODIFICATIONS 

 
III. PUBLIC COMMENT  

Comments critical of personnel, students, or volunteers will not be allowed given privacy 
concerns. Instead, they will be referred to the Superintendent for further inquiry and 
possible action. Comments are limited to 3 minutes per person and 10 minutes per topic. 
The Board asks those offering comment to recognize that as a K-12 public school 
system, we are modeling civil discourse and the democratic process for the youth in our 
community.   

 

Written comments may be sent by regular mail to Eastmont School District or emailed to 
schoolboard@eastmont206.org   
 

IV. PRESENTATION OF THE WASA COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP AWARD 
 

V. PROGRAM REPORTS 
A. District Music Department Report — Brittany Stevens, District Music Coordinator 
B. District Technology Services Report — Mike Brown, Director of Technology 
 

http://www.eastmont206.org/
mailto:schoolboard@eastmont206.org


   

6/12/2023; Page 2 of 3 

 
 

VI. PRESENTATION ON STUDENT REPRESENTATIVES 
WSSDA’s Director of Strategic Advocacy Marissa Rathbone will provide the Board with 
information regarding student representatives. 
 

VII. PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING ON 2023-2024 BUDGET 
The Board will hold a public hearing for the purpose of receiving comments from the 
public on the 2023-24 budget. Any person may be heard for or against any part of the 
2023-24 budget, the four year budget plan, or any proposed changes to uses of 
enrichment funding under RCW 28A.505.240. 
 

VIII. BOARD & SUPERINTENDENT INFORMATION 
A. Board News 
B. Superintendent News and Superintendent’s Report on Annual Goals 
 

IX. CONSENT AGENDA 
(All items on the Consent Agenda have been distributed to all board members for study and are 
considered routine. ALL items appearing in this section are adopted by one single motion, unless a 
member of the board or the superintendent requests that an item be removed and voted on separately.) 

A. Approval of the minutes from the regular meeting held on May 22, 2023. 
B. Approval of the payment of the bills and/or payroll dated June 12, 2023. 
C. Approval of the Personnel Action Items dated June 12, 2023. 
D. Approval of the following request for surplus: 

1. Cascade Elementary curriculum, furniture, and equipment items. 
2. Clovis Point Elementary School curriculum, furniture, and equipment items. 
3. Grant Elementary curriculum, furniture and equipment items. 
4. Kenroy Elementary curriculum, furniture, and equipment items. 
5. Lee Elementary curriculum, furniture, and equipment items. 
6. Rock Island Elementary curriculum, furniture, and equipment items. 
7. Sterling Junior School curriculum, furniture and equipment items. 
8. Eastmont Junior High School curriculum, furniture and equipment items. 
9. Eastmont High School curriculum, furniture and equipment items. 

10. Cascade Elementary, Grant Elementary, Kenroy Elementary, Lee Elementary, 
Eastmont Junior High, and Eastmont High School library books 

11. Eastmont Special Education Department Items. 
12. Eastmont High School Softball items. 

E. Approval of the following field trip request: 
1. Migrant students to attend Dare to Dream Academy at University of WA. 

F. Approval of the District Elementary Student Handbook for 2023-24. 
G. Approval of the Eastmont High School Student Handbook for 2023-24. 
H. Approval of a donation from Grant Elementary PTO. 
I. Approval of a donation from Greater Wenatchee Sunrise Lions Club. 
J. Approval of the Eastmont Career & Technical Education (CTE) District Wide Action Plan. 
K. Review of the Monthly Student Enrollment Report. 
L. *Approval of an additional field trip request for EHS Girls Basketball. 



   

6/12/2023; Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 

X. DISCUSSION & POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS 
A. Immediate Facilities Needs — Becky Berg, Superintendent 
B. Emergency Response Crisis Management Plan (ERCM) — Matt Charlton, Assistant 

Superintendent Secondary Education 
 

XI. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  FUTURE TOPICS – Previously identified by the Board for further review. 
1) Spanish at elementary schools. 
2) Student Liaisons to the School Board. 
 

  UPCOMING BOARD MEETINGS      
   July 17 Regular Meeting at Eastmont Administration Office at 5:30 p.m. 
   August 21 Regular Meeting at Eastmont Administration Office at 5:30 p.m. 
 
 
 



Eastmont School District #206   Relationships, Relevance, Rigor, and Results 
District Music Report for 2022-23 

 

6/12/2023;  Prepared and Presented by Brittany Stevens, District Music Coordinator 

 
Eastmont High School (Number of students served) 

School Year Orchestra Mariachi 
Combined 

Choirs 
Jazz Choir 
(zero per.) 

Jazz Band 
(zero per.) Band Piano 

 
Guitar Songwriting Total in Music4 

2018-19 10 28 95 16 15 32 70 24 11 274 
2019-20 8 39 78 17 16 64 34 35 23 281 
2020-21 10 29 64 121 18 57 40 41 21 262 
2021-22 10 25 63 13 15 52 49 25 7 231 
2022-23 10 45 66 13 18 44 66 28 17 276 

 
Eastmont Junior High  

School Year Orchestra Mariachi 
Combined 

Choirs 
Jazz Band 
(zero per.) 

8th Band/ 
Concert Band. 

9th Band/ 
Symph. Band. Piano Guitar Total in Music 

2018-19 31 51 83 40 32 63 NA 65 365 
2019-20 30 44 84 29 43 40 NA 90 326 
2020-21 24 27 86 24 38 48 42 56 321 
2021-227 101 30 465 29 25 33 101 92 428 
2022-23 222 23 32 17 15 34 42 25 193 

 

Sterling Junior High  
School Year Orchestra Mariachi 

Combined 
Choirs 

Jazz Band 
(club) 

Beginning 
Band 

Intermediate 
Band 

Advanced 
Band Guitar Total in Music 

2020-21 0 0 68 NA 0 0 0 0 541* 
2021-22 0 0 926 NA 80 32 23 0 227 
2022-23 32 25 51 19 75 26 16 52 277 
** = Due to COVID-19 restrictions, music ensembles were not offered in 2020-21. The total number reflects the number of students seen by  

 music teachers in a general music classroom setting.3 
 

6th Grade Jumpstart  
School Year SJH Strings EJH Strings SJH Choir EJH Choir SJH Band EJH Band Total in Music 
2022-23 48 34 49 49 64 85 329 

 
Allocated Revenues & Expenditures  

School Year 
Total 

Revenues 
Addl. School 
Allocations 

Total Budget 
Available 

Total 
Expenditures Balance 

2018-19 $53,020 $23,507 $76,527 $75,211 $1,211 
2019-20 $78,050 $16,435 $97,955 $83,809 $14,146 
2020-21 $78,050 $15,335 $93,385 $75,224  $18,160 
2021-22 $77,869 $17,982 $95,851 $73,837 $22,014 
2022-23 $82,879 $32,376 $122,460 NA NA 

 
 

Additional Monies Received from ESD 
● 30 music stands and 32 music chairs, $2700 
● Mariachi Northwest Festival registration, $4400 
● Instrument repairs to accommodate influx of Jumpstart students, $5416 

 
Community Performances8 

September: EHS Band - Pep Band for various athletic events; EHS Choir - National Anthem at Homecoming game 
with ASL Club 

October: EHS Band - Pep Band for various athletic events 
November:  EHS/EJHS Mariachi - Wenatchee Museum for Day of the Dead celebration; EHS Choirs - Bella Notte; 

EHS Band and Choir - Veteran’s Day Assembly; EHS Band - Veteran’s Day Parade; EHS Mariachi - Migrant 
PAC Meeting 

December:  EHS Jazz Choir - Caroling for community clubs and businesses; EHS Choir - Santa choir at WV Mall; 
SJHS Choir - Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony; EJHS Mariachi - Migrant PAC Meeting; EHS Jazz Band - 
Morning school performances; EHS Choir - presentation to Rotary Club 

 



6/05/23;  Prepared and Presented by Brittany Stevens, District Music Coordinator Page 2 

 
 
February:  EJHS/EHS Jazz Band - Wenatchee Jazz Workshop; EJHS Jazz Band - Morning school performances; 

NAfME All-Northwest Honor Jazz Choir - 2 EHS Choir students; EHS Choir - Voice of Eastmont talent show 
competition; EHS Mariachi - Migrant PAC Meeting 

March: EJHS Mariachi - Migrant PAC Meeting; EHS Choir - supported ensemble in Footloose the Musical 
April: EJHS and SJHS Bands - Apple Blossom Youth Parade; State Solo and Ensemble - 6 EHS Band and 2 EHS 

Choir students 
May:  EHS Mariachi, EHS, SJHS, & EJHS Bands - Classy Chassis; EHS Band - Apple Blossom Grand Parade; EHS 

Band - District Elementary Tour; EHS Band, Mariachi, Orchestra, & Choir - Apple Blossom Food Fair 
Performances; EJHS Band, Mariachi, Orchestra, & Choir - Apple Blossom Food Fair Performances; EHS Choir - 
Seattle tour performances at area high schools and St. James Cathedral; SJHS Band - School parade; EJHS 
Band - School parade 

June: EHS Band & Choir - Graduation; EHS Choir - National Anthem at AppleSox game 
 

Overall Health 
 Our music programs have been through significant upheavals in the last few years as we recover from the 
pandemic and adjust to the district’s new reconfiguration model. Across the nation, music programs are struggling to 
regain the ground they lost during COVID. At Eastmont we are on the way up! Students are enjoying making music again 
and we are doing our best to help them find success, value, and belonging through music. Students are showing 
dedication and commitment to their music classes. Students have expressed that music class is a safe place where they 
feel supported by their peers and free to be themselves. 
 This year EHS music ensembles participated in several festivals and competitions. Eastmont continues to build its 
reputation as a place that supports and excels in the arts. This year, two choir students were selected from hundreds of 
applicants across six states to participate in the All-Northwest Honor Jazz Choir, an honor reserved for only 24 students. 
We sent two ensembles (saxophone quartet and vocal duet) and two instrumental soloists to State Solo and Ensemble, 
while many other students earned first and second alternate positions. Our saxophone quartet took third place in their 
category. All EHS musical ensembles earned a Superior rating at their adjudication festivals this year. We have 
represented Eastmont at the campuses of WSU, CWU, UW, WVC, and CBC at various festivals and performances. 50 
choir students had the opportunity to see a professional opera production of La traviata in Seattle and were commended 
by the ushers for their attentive and respectful demeanor. EHS’s production of Footloose won the Apple Award for Best 
Overall Musical and two EHS choir students won awards for Best Actor and Best Supporting Actor in a musical. 
 To create a culture of teamwork and retention, our secondary music team has established several collaborative 
concerts, workshops, and other opportunities for high school students and junior high students to interact with each other. 
We have witnessed an increased desire from younger students to “stick with” their musical careers through high school 
thanks to these efforts. Collaborations include a district band concert, a district choir workshop, a combined jazz holiday 
concert, combined orchestra and Mariachi concerts, Festival of the Arts, invitations for JH choirs to perform at EHS choir 
concerts, and marching band mini-parades to other schools. These collaborative opportunities continue to be a highlight 
for students and staff alike. 
 While many things are going well at Eastmont, we have also experienced challenges this year. Adding sixth grade 
to the junior high caseload resulted in a shortage of playable instruments and led to budget inequities as JH instrumental 
teachers focused on repairs. Some of this strain was alleviated with additional district funding. We are concerned about a 
culture of unhealthy competition between the two junior high schools, including discrepancies in resources and classes 
offered. Each junior high employs a different approach to scheduling (supply vs. demand, grade bands vs. ability 
grouping, etc.), which may limit our progress in creating two equally successful music departments. Workloads often feel 
overwhelming as we navigate travel/ASB paperwork, monitoring students for travel eligibility, and more on top of our 
regular teaching assignment. Most concerning to our team at the moment is the loss of choir at EJHS and the precedent it 
sets for enrollment expectations. Continued uncertainty, lack of transparency in decision making, and tireless advocacy 
efforts have led to mental health concerns for some of our teammates. 

We look forward to working with district and building administrators to continue Eastmont’s tradition of musical 
support and success in the coming years. 
 
Notes 

1. EHS Jazz Choir was no longer offered as a zero hour class, but rather as a class during the regular school day, 
starting in 2020-21. Concurrent enrollment in a core music ensemble is required for all jazz students. 

2. While the data above shows separate enrollment numbers for Orchestra and Mariachi at the JH level, these 
classes are offered at a single location and combined with students from both schools. Mariachi is taught in the 
Sterling portables and Orchestra is taught on the EJHS stage. Starting in 2022-23, all Orchestra and Mariachi 
data will be recorded in this way. Data from previous years may convey a skewed distribution of students from 
either school. 

 



6/05/23;  Prepared and Presented by Brittany Stevens, District Music Coordinator Page 3 

 
 

3. 2020-21:  Music ensembles were not able to be offered at the Intermediate school level, due to the necessity for 
cohorts. Music teachers taught general music classes to the entire school at both Clovis and Sterling. This will 
have a significant impact on the music program for the next seven years, as these early students move through 
the program. We are working to recover, rebuild, and plan within our Professional Learning Community. 

4. Jazz ensemble enrollment data is excluded from enrollment total due to the core ensemble concurrent enrollment 
requirement. 

5. JH choir enrollment saw a significant decrease post-COVID, due in part to several factors: disproportionate 
impact on vocal music and singing during the pandemic, district reconfiguration, and types of choral classes 
offered. Pre-pandemic, EJHS offered grade level and gender-specific choir classes. Post-pandemic, students 
were randomly assigned to a section of choir with no emphasis on ability level or voice type. 

6. Sterling 2021-22 enrollment data includes optional 6th grade Clovis students. Starting in 2022-23, 6th grade 
enrollment data will be reflected in its own table. 

7. The ESD reconfiguration process completed in 2021-22 with Sterling transitioning to a junior high school. EJHS 
music enrollment data from 21-22 reflects this loss in students. 

8. Community performances are in addition to regularly scheduled concerts held at ESD facilities. Each ensemble 
presents at least two concerts. EHS ensembles also participate in festivals held at various college campuses and 
facilities throughout the state. 



Eastmont School District #206   Relationships, Relevance, Rigor, and Results 
Technology Services Report for 2022-23 

 

6/12/2023; Prepared and Presented by Mike Brown, Director of Technology 

 
Number of Staff & Student Computers/Chromebooks 
2022-23 School Year Chromebooks Computers/Laptops 
Deployed (staff and students) 7,845 1,447 
Unassigned  290 289 
Not repairable – Used for Parts 418 5 
Out for repair    34 3 

Chromebooks will be distributed 1 cart per classroom at elementary level next year. 
Chromebooks will be distributed 1 to 1 at secondary level next year. 
 
Staff (Total = 8) 
Director 1; Network/System Administrator 3; District-wide Desktop Technicians 4. 
 
Expenditures from All Sources 
Budget Expenditures 2019-2020:  $2,344,222  
Budget Expenditures 2020-2021:  $2,167,088     

Budget Expenditures 2021-2022:  $2,542,050 
Budget Expenditures 2022-2023:  $2,619,629  

 
Schedule    
Regular school day plus other hours as needed, generally 7:00 AM – 4:30 PM. 
 
Primary Hardware Components 
14 physical servers; 107 virtual servers; 1,447 computers; 450 document cameras; 321 projectors; 
121 tablets; 7,845 Chromebooks; 432 video cameras; 77 electronically controlled doors; 452 
wireless access points; 199 networked printers; and 537 local printers.  
 
Primary Software 
Email: Gmail; Student records: Qmlativ; Library software: Follett Destiny;   
Staff and student productivity software: Microsoft Office-Google; 
HR and Finance: Skyward;  Network operating system: Windows Servers; 
Website: Campus Suite; and Video/Access control: Genetec 
 
Performance Information/Upgrades 

1. Continue to provide a stable, secure, fast network with minimal downtime. 
2. Continue use of: ParentSquare (notifications), Campus Suite (website), and Qmlativ (SIS). 
3. Continue Chromebook distribution District-wide: Elementary using one cart per elementary 

classroom and Secondary having 1 to1 distribution. 
4. Implemented new large format touch screen monitors in classrooms. 
5. Implementing a new cellular based radio solution. 
6. Updating intercom systems (upon approval). 

 
Priority Areas for Improvement 

1. Continue to replace aging network equipment and update network storage. 
2. Upgrade cycle of District’s electronics (computers, Chromebooks, projectors, etc...). 
3. Replace district wide phone system (Intercom replacement first). 
4. Implement an electronic document management solution. 
5. Continue to evaluate, educate, and tighten personal, network, and desktop security. 



 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
  Caryn Metsker, Executive Director of Financial Services 
 
SUBJECT: Public Budget Hearing Documents  
 
DATE:  June 12, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
Documents for the public budget hearing are being finalized and will be presented at 
Monday night’s meeting. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒None          ☒Required          

 
 
 
 



Eastmont School District #206   Relationships, Relevance, Rigor, and Results 
Report on Superintendent Goals for 2022-23 

 

6/12/23; Prepared and Presented by Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 

 
I am pleased to present the Superintendent's Annual Report on Goals for the academic year 2022-2023. This 
report highlights the actions and results under each goal area, as presented at our meeting on August 22, 
2022.   

1.) Getting to know East Wenatchee and Eastmont and to build relationships.  Begin to understand 
our strengths and areas for growth, and the people who make up our community.   

 Actions: 
• I am an active member of the Wenatchee Valley noon Rotary club.  Although we meet in 

Wenatchee, there are members from East Wenatchee, including our current president and a past 
president.  I am also joined at the club by the Wenatchee Superintendent and our Educational 
Service District #171 Superintendent and Board Members. 

• I am beginning service as a member of the Board of Directors of Hand in Hand Immigration 
Services. I look forward to this work, and to getting further involved with our Latino community 
members. 

• I conducted a comprehensive Entry Plan upon arriving in July of 2022.  The results of that plan are 
here.  This very deliberate approach to understanding our community is the bedrock of Goal #1. 

 
2.) Educate citizens around the Bond issue so that they can be informed when they make their 

choice in November.   
 Actions: 

• Our informational committee did our level best to get the word out as we have traditionally done 
in the past.  This consisted of presenting to 27 groups, whether internal or external.  We posted 
large artist concept boards in every school, and created this Frequently Asked Questions 
handout. Additionally, we sent our one newsletter as allowed by law, that arrived as the ballots 
dropped.   

• After 12,742 voters submitted their ballots, we were in the positive by 322 ballots, but that was 
not enough to achieve the super majority as required by law.  We achieved 51.26%. 

• Our response to this has been multipronged.  First and most importantly, we have engaged the 
electorate in a community conversation about why they voted the way that they did.  Here are 
the engagement statistics, the summary paragraph, the listed thoughts with star ratings, and a 
keyword map.   

• Based on this information, we sent out a follow up survey and the results were shared via the 
school board email address. It is comforting that nearly 900 community members and staff have 
now engaged in a digital conversation about the future of our facilities.   

• I have also been regularly participating in a Bond Planning Focus Group of superintendents from 
Eastern Washington.  We have studied trends, finances, and a variety of scenarios.  We have 
harvested two specific tools that we are applying currently:  A facilities dashboard for the public 
to reference on our website to do a ‘deep dive’ into the condition of our facilities, and an 
interactive map of each school and the student demographics within.  Both of these tools model 
transparency for our community and should be ‘live’ by August.    

• We will be hosting a workshop on June 22, where we will hear a presentation on the different 
ways we can approach the design, bidding and building of our facilities.  Cindy and Meaghan will 
be in attendance, as will representatives from the Chelan School District.  Once we choose 
which of the three approaches available, we will have our experts run the numbers to see if we 
can stay within our budget and have the tax rate stay the same as it is now. We will present a 
proposal to the board in time to ask you to put a measure on the February 2024 ballot, so that 
we have ample time to inform the community, per their input.  

• We will be presenting a facilities immediate needs plan on June 12, 2023 for your approval. 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1nYac4caJ3jdvjElcXfIxCqC8oi_F1js_hdUH2VZBkjQ/edit?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/open?id=1wzKLVcjt79yPXoajMH1vyX3W9Gg5nm5X
https://drive.google.com/open?id=17Z_YRqmkhGiIH2O_slC15_jGBdd-VQm1
https://tejoin.com/scroll/470530503


 

 

 

3.) Advance the learning and teaching goals of the Strategic Plan 
I quickly learned that our Strategic Plan has aged, and is not well understood.  Therefore, we are 
embarking on a Strategic Planning process during the 2023-2024 school year.  This process will 
include a wide variety of stakeholders, and will be facilitated by ESD171.   
 
In the meantime, we are an educational organization, and education cannot wait.  Areas of 
improvement in learning and teaching this year have been: 
• A comprehensive study and staffing changes in our special education department.  We 

conducted a WASA review of the program that is here, have met and solicited input from the 
special education staff writ large, and have hired new leadership.   We are beginning to 
implement suggestions from the WASA review. 

• We have hired an Executive Director of Learning and Teaching to oversee the learning side of 
the house.  In her portfolio will be special education and other special programs to aid in 
bringing all of the voices to the table when it comes to student learning.  

• We are recommitting ourselves to the Professional Learning Communities (PLC) continuous 
improvement model over the next three years.   This will be our flagship initiative where we will 
invest the lion’s share of our time.  

• Spencer Taylor and Kim Browning led a thorough curriculum adoption process for English 
Language Arts at the elementary level.  You formally adopted this new curriculum at our May 
8th Board of Directors meeting.  

• This was our first full year implementing our Project Search program for our 18-21 year olds with 
Stemilt Growers.  I am not sure how it could have been more successful, and the delight in the 
eyes of our students says it all.  

 
4.)  Build upon Eastmont’s Comprehensive Safety Plan 

This year, Matt Charlton has brilliantly led the focus on improving our comprehensive safety plan.   
Actions: 

• A committee of administrators, safety personnel and school resource officers reviewed 
Eastmont School District’s Safety Plans and made the following recommendations:  
(District Safety Team Recommendations May 2023). 

• Included in these recommendations is adoption of a required Emergency Response Crisis 
Management Plan (ERCM). This plan is not made available to the public as it shares details a 
potential “bad actor” could utilize. 

• Another point of emphasis in the 2023-24 school year was to address gang related safety 
concerns. Though gang affiliation and related crimes remain a scourge on our community we 
have made progress in reducing their impact on our schools. 

° The number of gang related violent acts on campuses is noticeably less.  
° Student “success contracts” completed with parents and students has led in several 

instances to improved behavior and student performance, particularly at EHS. 
° Dress code changes have helped gang affiliated identifiable clothing (reds, blues).  
° A joint effort with Wenatchee School District officials and parents from both communities 

has led to several recommendations currently in place. 
 Graffiti clean up event (October 2022). 
 Fewer out of school suspensions for non-violent gang related school offenses. 
 Development of a mentoring program for youth impacted by gangs. 

 The District is contracting with Dr. Maria Morales to lead development of a 
mentoring program we can point families towards. 

• Presentation of a comprehensive district wide safety plan to the Board of Directors is 
scheduled for June 12, 2023 for formal adoption. 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ivMzsZfSGWCGw43reUCyM6Z_nEfp48QT/view?usp=share_link
https://www.eastmont206.org/ehs/eastmont-transition-program/eastmont-transition-program
https://docs.google.com/document/u/0/d/1J7WhlJUluWGMJ4ZhSo832As1kC7Ch70RwNxM-Aq0WVQ/edit
https://www.cwu.edu/news/new-wenatchee-eoc-building-bridges-communities-lack-resources-access


 

 

 

• Hired a second School Resource Officer for the district, and have repaired the relationship 
between the police department and the district.  

• Have scheduled safety training for all administrators on June 15 & 16 in the ALICE active 
shooter response.  This begins the “train the trainer” method for August training of all staff 
members.   

• Counselors are scheduled to attend PREPaRE training at ESD 171.  This better prepares our 
counselors to respond to a tragic event in Eastmont, and to be a part of a response ‘flight 
team’ for a tragic event in another district in the Valley.  

• Have contracted with Care Solace, a mental health ‘concierge’ service for students, families 
and staff members to help navigate the complexity of finding mental health services in our 
community.  

• Have contracted with CVCH Mobile Connect Clinic to provide medical, dental and mental 
health screenings for our students.  They will also be offering tele-mental health services to 
our students.   

• We are increasing the number of athletic and extracurricular offerings for our sixth through 
twelfth grade students to keep them engaged in pro-social activities.  

 

As you can see, we have accomplished meaningful work that will produce a deliverable of a better 
education for our students.  That is why we do this work.  Also, it must be stated that although these are 
worded the ‘Superintendent Goals’, they are really goals accomplished by the entire Eastmont 
Leadership Team.  To use an analogy, I am the conductor of a very skilled orchestra. They deserve the 
credit.   

 

https://www.alicetraining.com/our-program/alice-training/
https://www.nasponline.org/professional-development/prepare-training-curriculum/about-prepare
https://www.caresolace.org/services/k12-education
https://cvch.org/our-locations/cvch-connect-clinic


   

Draft Minutes for 5/22/23;  Page 1 of 3 

- DRAFT - 

 
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

May 22, 2023 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
On Monday, May 22, 2023, the regular meeting of the Eastmont School District Board of 
Directors was called to order by Board President Cindy Wright at 5:30 p.m. in the 
Eastmont Administration Office, 800 Eastmont Avenue, East Wenatchee.   
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present: 

Cindy Wright, Board President 
Meaghan Vibbert, Board Vice President 
Jason Heinz, Board Director 
Steve Piccirillo, Board Director 
Whitney Smith, Board Director  
Becky Berg, Board Secretary/Superintendent 
Brandy Fields, Superintendent’s Secretary  

 
 

Also Participating In-person: 
District staff and community members 

 
APPROVE AGENDA/MODIFICATIONS 
Superintendent Becky Berg reported that WSSDA Position Proposal was added to the 
Discussion & Possible Action Items this morning and Consent Agenda Item. C. Personnel 
Action Items Memo was updated this afternoon.  There were no other changes. 
 
MOVED by Director Smith and SECONDED by Director Piccirillo to approve the revised 
Agenda for May 22, 2023.  The motion CARRIED unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Instructions for public comment were provided on the Agenda.  Public Comments could be 
made to the Board in three ways: 1) In-person by signing up; 2) By writing and sending 
regular mail to the Administration Office; and 3) By email: schoolboard@eastmont206.org.  
There was public comment from: 

• Terri Wynder regarding Eastmont Preschool 
• Erin Redal regarding District Mission. 

 



   

Draft Minutes for 5/22/23;  Page 2 of 3 

- DRAFT - 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE INTERN REPORTS 
A. Data-Based Decision Making. 

Administrative Intern Camille Brown presented her administrative intern project and 
answered questions from the Board. 
 

B. Community Reading Project. 
Administrative Intern Julio Chavez presented his administrative intern project and 
answered questions from the Board. 
 

C. Junior High Booster/PTO/PAC. 
Administrative Intern Kerrie DuFour presented her administrative intern project and 
answered questions from the Board. 
 

REPORTS 
A. Special Education Services Report. 

Interim Special Education Director Jennifer Chase presented the Special Education 
Services Report and answered questions from the Board.  

 
BOARD & SUPERINTENDENT INFORMATION 
A. Board News. 

Director Heinz provided an update on recent EHS athletic accomplishments.  Director 
Piccirillo expressed his appreciation for Director Vibbert and Director Smith filing last 
week to continue serving on the Board. 
 

B. Superintendent News. 
Superintendent Berg shared with the Board that she attended the recent Unified 
Kickball game and staff retirement gatherings at the schools. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approval of minutes. The Board of Directors approved the minutes from the regular 

meeting held on May 8, 2023. 
B. Payment of bills and/or payroll. The Board of Directors approved the following checks, 

direct deposits, or wire transfers listed on check summaries dated May 22, 2023: 
 Warrant Numbers Total Dollar Amount 

7131927-7132111 $983,871.16 
7132112-7132112 $328.00 
7132113-7132113 $64.84 
7132114-7132115 $977.44 
7132116-7132130 $33,320.69 

 

C. Approval of personnel action. The Board of Directors approved the Personnel Action 
Items dated May 22, 2023. 

D. Approval of surplus request. The Board of Directors approved the following request for 
surplus: 

1. Curriculum – previous ELA Adoption. 



   

Draft Minutes for 5/22/23;  Page 3 of 3 

- DRAFT - 
 
 
E. Approval of field trip requests. The Board of Directors approved the following field trip 

requests: 
1. EHS ASB to Leadership Camp. 
2. Migrant students to attend camp field experiences at IslandWood. 

F. Approval of donation. The Board of Directors approved the donation from Grant 
Elementary PTO. 

G. Approval of donation. The Board of Directors approved the donation from the US Army 
to EHS Athletics. 

H. Approval of summer athletic programs. The Board of Directors approved the Summer 
Athletic Programs and their overnight camps. 

I. Review of budget status report. The Board of Directors reviewed the Monthly Budget 
Status Report. 

 
MOVED by Director Piccirillo and SECONDED by Director Heinz to approve Consent 
Agenda Items #A-I.  The motion CARRIED unanimously. 
 
DISCUSSION & POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS 
A. Board of Directors Meeting Calendar for 2023-24. 

Superintendent Berg presented the draft Board of Directors Meeting Calendar. 
 
MOVED by Director Heinz and SECONDED by Director Vibbert to approve the Board of 
Directors Meeting Calendar for 2023-24.  The motion CARRIED unanimously. 
 
B. WSSDA Position Proposal. 

Director Smith presented information about the revised draft WSSDA Position Proposal. 
 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Heinz to approve the revised 
draft Position Proposal and submit it to WSSDA.  The motion CARRIED unanimously. 

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
None at this time. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
MOVED by Director Piccirillo and SECONDED by Director Smith to adjourn the meeting.   
The motion CARRIED unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:41 p.m. 
 



  Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Kayla Brown, Executive Director of Human Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Personnel Action Items 
 
DATE:  June 12, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
 
New Hires 
The following people have been offered tentative employment for the 23-24 school year: 
Last Name First Name School Position 
Alailima-Daley Elia EJHS Administration 
Davidson Ashley EHS Psychologist  
Hall Rebecca Cascade Teacher 
Hoffman Amber District Office Special Education Secretary  
Keller Macey District Office Occupational Therapist 
St. Jean Colton EHS Teacher 
Lueondee Alyssa Cascade Teacher 
Melchor  Imperial Maintenance HVAC  
Peak  Alison Cascade Teacher 
Praye Madeline District Office Intern-Psychologist  
Ramos-Padilla Alan EHS/EJHS Teacher 
Schauer Caitlin District Office Speech-Language Pathologist 

 
 
Resignations/Separation 
The following people have notified us of their plans to resign for the 22-23 school year: 
Last Name First Name School Position 
Alas Dillon EJHS Teacher/3 years 
Carpio Horeb Rock Island Paraeducator/2 years 
Castillo Juan Clovis Custodian/8.5 years 
Alexander  Erica SJHS Teacher/10.25 years 

 
 
 



  Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
Last Name First Name School Position 
Itterley Shannen Clovis Teacher/1.60 years 
McDonnell Tracy EHS Paraeducator/8 years 
Nelson Victoria Cascade Teacher/5.18 years 
Northfield Kirsten Cascade Paraeducator/2 years 
Sullivan-Jones Kyle Preschool Teacher/2 years 

 
Retirement 
The following person has notified us of his plans to retire in the 23-24 school year: 
Last Name First Name School Position/Years 
Telecky Todd Clovis Custodian/30.5 years 

 
Termination 
The following person has been notified of this decision to terminate during their probationary 
period: 
Last Name First Name School Position 
Slatta Summer Grant Paraeducator 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒None ☒Personnel Expenditure 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of the Personnel Action Items listed above. 



  Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Requests for Surplus 
 
DATE:  June 12, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
 
Staff from the following buildings have curriculum, furniture, or equipment lists and the 
Executive Directors have reviewed and approved the items (lists will be posted 
separately on the website) as surplus: 

1. Cascade Elementary curriculum, furniture, and equipment items. 
2. Clovis Point Elementary School curriculum, furniture, and equipment items. 
3. Grant Elementary curriculum, furniture and equipment items. 
4. Kenroy Elementary curriculum, furniture, and equipment items. 
5. Lee Elementary curriculum, furniture, and equipment items. 
6. Rock Island Elementary curriculum, furniture, and equipment items. 
7. Sterling Junior School curriculum, furniture and equipment items. 
8. Eastmont Junior High School curriculum, furniture and equipment items. 
9. Eastmont High School curriculum, furniture and equipment items. 

 
Library staff from Cascade Elementary, Grant Elementary, Kenroy Elementary, Lee 
Elementary, Eastmont Junior High, and Eastmont High School request the attached lists 
of library books be declared as surplus.  These lists will be posted separately on the 
website. 
 
Eastmont Special Education staff request the attached list of items be declared as 
surplus.  This list will be posted separately on the website. 
 
Eastmont High School Softball staff request the following items be declared as surplus:   

Items  Quantity 
Red helmet with face masks  13 
Red helmet without face mask  2 
Blue helmet without face mask  1 
 



  Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
Items  Quantity 
Blue bat bags  20 
Red and Blue Boomah bat bags  16 
Blue Louisville slugger bat bags  15 
Catcher’s gear  2 
Catcher’s bags  3 
Grey pants with blue pin. stripe  50 
Russell Jersey Red  13 
Black Boomah pants with blue pinstripe  15 
Red Boombah warmups  14 
Button up red Russell jersey  15 

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒None ☒Revenue, if sold 
 

 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends the Board authorize said property as surplus. 



 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Field Trip Request – Migrant students to Dare to Dream Academy 
 
DATE:  June 12, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
As you know, field trips which take students overnight and/or out-of-state, must have 
Board approval. 
 
Eastmont administrators are seeking the Board’s permission to allow approximately 32 
8th and 9th grade Migrant students to participate in the Dare To Dream Health Science 
Academy overnight at the University of Washington, Seattle, WA.  The academy takes 
place June 21-27, 2023.  All supervision, transportation, and expenses for this camp are 
covered by the State Migrant Education Department.  There is no cost to the students to 
attend.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Field Trip Request ☒None 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of this overnight field trip request for Migrant 
students. 









 

 
Eastmont School District 
Relationships, Relevance, Rigor, Results 

 
800 Eastmont Ave., East Wenatchee, WA  98802 
509-884-7169   ~  509-884-4210 (fax)   ~   www.eastmont206.org 

 

 
Memorandum 
 
 
To: Eastmont Board of Directors 
 Dr. Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
From: Kim Browning, Principal, Cascade Elementary School 

Spencer Taylor, Executive Director of Elementary Education  
 
Date: June 12, 2023  
 
Re: District Elementary Student Handbook Updates for 2023-2024 
 
 
The following changes have been made for the 2023-2024 School Year: 

• New Principal of Cascade added (Cover)  
• Use of cell phones elaborated (Page 8). 
• Breakfast and lunches section updated (Page 8). 
• Coffee, treats, pizza, etc… will not be delivered to classrooms during the school day (page 9). 
• Gender Inclusive Schools reference to Board Policy (Page 11).  

o Note:  This is in response to the Consolidated Program Review audit and brings us into 
compliance. 

• Public display of affection prohibition added (Page 12). 
• Transportation expectations simplified (Page 16). 

 
 
 
 



Trever Summers, Cascade Elementary Principal
Amy Dorey, Clovis Elementary Principal

Kirsten Mittelstaedt, Grant Elementary Principal
Kristy Daley, Kenroy Elementary Principal
Jamea Connor, Lee Elementary Principal

John Reichmann, Rock Island Elementary Principal
Spencer Taylor, Executive Director of Elementary Education

Dr. Becky Berg, Superintendent



EASTMONT SCHOOL DISTRICT MISSION STATEMENT
The mission of the Eastmont School District is to maximize the potential of all students by:

● Relationships – that support a safe and secure learning environment for students
and staff.

● Relevance – in education experiences that meet the needs of students, parents,
and community.

● Rigor – by having expectations that require students to develop and demonstrate
academic excellence.

● Results – that are used to improve and support student and employee success.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Eastmont Board of Directors generally meets on the second and fourth Monday of
each month at 5:30 p.m. Meetings are held in either the Administration Office Board
Room at 800 Eastmont Avenue or at individual schools. Please call the District Office or
visit the District’s website if you have any questions regarding these meetings
(884-7169 or www.eastmont206.org).

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION
Dr. Becky Berg, Superintendent
Mr. Spencer Taylor, Executive Director of Elementary Education
Mr. Matt Charlton, Assistant Superintendent/Executive Director of Secondary Education
Mrs. Caryn Metsker, Executive Director of Financial Services
Mrs. Kayla Brown, Executive Director of Human Resources

NONDISCRIMINATION STATEMENT
Eastmont School District does not discriminate in any programs or activities on the
basis of sex, race, creed, religion, color, national origin, age, veteran or military status,
sexual orientation, gender expression or identity, disability, or the use of a trained dog
guide or service animal and provides equal access to the Boy Scouts and other
designated youth groups.

The following employees have been designated to handle questions and complaints of
alleged discrimination:

● Civil Rights Coordinator and Title IX Coordinator, Kayla Brown, 509-884-7169,
brownk@eastmont206.org

● Section 504 Coordinator, Matt Charlton, 509-884-7169,
charltonm@eastmont206.org. 800 Eastmont Avenue, East Wenatchee 98802

2 Revised 4/2023

http://www.eastmont206.org
mailto:brownk@eastmont206.org


NOTIFICATION OF RIGHTS UNDER FERPA FOR ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY SCHOOLS
(FERPA)

for Elementary and Secondary Schools

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords parents and students over 18 years of age
(“eligible students”) certain rights with respect to the student’s education records. These rights are:

1) The right to inspect and review the student’s education record within 45 days of the day the School receives
a request for access.

Parents or eligible students should submit to the School principal [or appropriate school official] a written
request that identifies the record(s) they wish to inspect. The School official will make arrangements for
access and notify the parent or eligible student of the time and place where the records may be inspected.

2) The right to request the amendment of the student’s education records that the parent or eligible student
believes are inaccurate.

Parents or eligible students may ask the School to amend a record that they believe is inaccurate. They
should write to the school principal [or appropriate school official], clearly identify the part of the record
they want changed, and specify why it is inaccurate. If the School decides not to amend the record as
requested by the parent or eligible student, the School will notify the parent or eligible student of the
decision and advise them of their right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional
information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the parent or eligible student when
notified of the right to a hearing.

3) The right to consent to disclosure of personally identifiable information contained in the student’s education
records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent.

One exception, which permits disclosure without consent, is disclosure to school officials with legitimate
educational interest. A school official is a person employed by the School as an administrator, supervisor,
instructor, or support staff member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel);
a person serving on the School Board ; a person or company whom the School has contracted to perform a
special task (such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist); or a parent of a student serving
on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another school official
in performing his or her tasks.

A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an educational record in
order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility.

Upon request, the School disclosed education records without consent to officials of another school district
in which a student seeks or intends to enroll. [NOTE: FERPA requires a school district to make a
reasonable attempt to notify the parent or student of the records request unless it states in its annual
notification that it intends to forward records on request.]

4) The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the
Eastmont Public Schools to comply with the requirements of FERPA.

The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA are:

Family Policy Compliance Office
U.S. Department of Education
400 Maryland Avenue,

SWWashington, DC 20202-4605

3 Revised 4/2023



TABLE OF CONTENTS

School Calendar ………………………………………………………………………….. 5

Admission/Withdrawal Policies………………………………………………………... 6

Attendance Policy………………………………………………………………………... 6-7

Classroom Learning Environment (Birthdays, Electronics/Cell Phones, Toys)................. 8

Food (Breakfast/Lunches, Candy/Gum)……………………………………………………….. 8-9

Health Services …………………………..……………………………………………... 9-10

School Safety ……………………………………………………………………………. 11-14

Student Data and Information …………………………………………………….….. 14-16

Student Dress ……………………………………………………………………………. 16

Transportation ……………………….…………………………………………….……. 16

4 Revised 4/2023



School Calendar

5 Revised 4/2023



Admission/Withdrawal and Attendance Policies

All students need to register for school at the Eastmont School District Office at 800 Eastmont Ave.

Kindergarten Requirements: To enter kindergarten a child must be five years of age on or before
August 31. Birth certificates or hospital records and an immunization record must be presented
before students may register. State education officials require a polio immunization series, a series
for "DTP" (diphtheria, tetanus, and pertussis) or a DT variation, two immunizations against mumps,
measles and rubella, and the series of three Hepatitis B immunizations for kindergarteners through
fourth grade prior to school admission. The final immunizations for the polio and DTP series must
have been administered on or after the child's fourth birthday. Kindergarteners are also required to
have the varicella immunization or proof of having had the disease. Immunization records will be
reviewed for compliance by School District nurses.

Withdrawal: The school appreciates notice of student withdrawal at least two days before the last
day of attendance indicating:

1. The last day of attendance.
2. Approximate location to which you are moving.
3. If known, the new school your child will attend.

Upon enrollment of your child at a new school, the new school will request permanent records to be
sent. With reasonable notice, the teacher can prepare the progress report and obtain information
for the transfer. Parents should stop in at the office to obtain a copy of their child's immunization
records to present to the new school.

Attendance Policy: Attendance is essential to the success of all students. Students who miss
critical instruction in key concepts quickly fall behind in school and are less likely to achieve
academic success. Accordingly, school attendance is mandatory, and unexcused absences and
truancy are prohibited. The state defines chronic absenteeism as being absent 10% of the days
enrolled in school.
It is required by state law that each absence from school be explained by a note or phone
call from the parent or guardian. Parents are required to contact the office as soon as possible
each time their child is absent and include the student's complete name, date, and reason for the
absence. If we do not hear from you, our receptionist will call you to verify the absence (required
by the Becca Bill).

Parents who choose to have their children miss school for non-illness or non-emergency reasons
should contact the school at least one week in advance of the absence to complete the
pre-approved absence form. These absences may be considered unexcused if they cause a
serious adverse effect on the student’s educational progress. Parents whose children incur more
than two unexcused absences during any quarter will be asked to meet with the principal to
develop a plan to improve attendance.

6 Revised 4/2023



Excused
Absences

● Illness (fever over 100 degrees, vomiting, diarrhea, infectious diseases)
● Chronic health condition (if over 5 days may require a doctor’s note)
● Medical appointment (please bring a doctor’s note)
● Family emergency
● Religious purposes

Unexcused
Absences

● Failing to submit any type of excuse statement by the parent/guardian
● Absences that do not meet the guidelines for an excused absence
● Unexcused absences may occur at the discretion of administration, when a

student’s absence are chronic or have an adverse effect on progress

If a student has more than 2 unexcused absences within a month, a school
conference will be required.

Tardies Students are expected to be in class on time. If a student arrives after the second
bell, they will need to check in at the office. When a student’s tardiness becomes
frequent or disruptive, the student will be referred to the principal, assistant
principal, or the counselor.

Picking
Students Up
and Early
Checkout

All students need to be checked out of school through the office. Only people listed
in our data system will be allowed to pick up students during the school day and
identification is required.

We request that you do not remove your child from school during the school day
unless it is absolutely necessary and early checkout within 15 minutes from the
end of the day is not permitted.

Attendance
Actions

When the Attendance Committee at a school notices there is a possible
attendance concern the following actions may be taken:

● Information letter sent to parents
● Attendance Nudge letter showing students attendance compared to the

other students at the school
● A phone call from school administration seeking to help solve the problem
● A meeting with school administration and parents seeking to help solve the

problem
● A 10 day letter letting parents know that attendance is a concern
● A 15 day letter requiring doctor’s notes for any further absences
● Home visits
● A Notice to Appear letter for Truancy Board

*Please refer to School Board Policy No. 3122 for complete information on the District policy for
attendance.

7 Revised 4/2023



Classroom Learning Environment

Birthdays at
School

Birthday treats may be brought to school, please check with the teacher in advance.
● Party invitations and gifts are not allowed to be passed out at school unless

every class member is invited.
● We do not allow flower arrangements or balloons for student birthdays in the

classrooms.

Cell Phones
and Personal
Electronic
Devices

Grade K-6: Cell phones are discouraged, but if parents believe one is necessary
students may use the cell phone before coming onto school property and after leaving
school property.

● Cell phones may not be used during the school day. Phones must be turned
off and kept in a backpack at all times while on campus.

● Phones may not be used on the playground, cafeteria and hallways before
school.

● If a student does not follow these expectations the phone will be kept in the
office until a parent picks it up. This includes smart watches with phone
capabilities.

● Students are not allowed to use or possess any other personal electronic
devices, including smart watches that make phone calls, text, and/or record at
school. They will be confiscated until the end of the day. If the problem
continues, further action will be taken. Exceptions may be made if devices are
for educational purposes and if they are pre-approved.

● The school is not responsible for lost or stolen items.

Toys ● All toys should be kept at home except if brought for “Show & Tell” purposes
with advanced permission given by the teacher.

● Toys can cause a disruption to learning and there is a risk they will be lost or
stolen.

Food

Breakfast and Lunches: Eastmont School District has a breakfast and lunch program. Students may
also bring their lunches from home. If a student would like to purchase milk, the cost is $.40.

● One breakfast and one lunch meal are free for all students. If additional meals or milk is wanted,
money must be put into a student’s account via the District’s online payment system. Students
are not allowed to “charge” extra meals/milk.

● The cost for additional meals will be published at the beginning of the school year.
● This information may be accessed on the District’s website at www.eastmont206.org under

Departments and then “Food Services”.
● Family Income Survey - Schools receive certain funding based on the economy of our

community. This information makes sure your child’s school receives the full amount of federal
and state educational funding. The Family Income Survey is available at the school or the
District’s website. We request that all families complete this survey.

8 Revised 4/2023

http://www.eastmont206.org/


Lunches/
Snacks from
Home

● Students are not allowed to share or trade food for safety reasons.
● Only individual sized portions may be brought to school for lunch/snack (no

large bag of chips, cookies, crackers, candy, etc…)
● Soda pop and energy drinks are not permitted during lunch or snack.
● Coffee, treats, pizza, etc. will not be delivered to classrooms during the school

day

Candy/Gum ● Candy and other treats may be allowed at teacher discretion,
● No gum allowed unless principal approved for a special activity.

Health Services

Our school Health Room is staffed by paraprofessionals, office staff, and is overseen by a part-time
school nurse. When students come to the Health Room, staff assess the problem, treat minor injuries,
document the visit, and call parents when necessary.

Accidents During the school year there are occasionally a few accidents. Every precaution is
taken to prevent such mishaps. It is very important for each student and parent to
know the following procedure in case of an accident:

● The student reports the accident to the teacher or playground supervisor.
● The student will be brought to the Health Room. If the injury is serious, parents

will be contacted. Unless it is an absolute emergency, the school cannot take
the child to a doctor.

● If you have school insurance, please ask the office staff for an accident report
to take to the doctor.

Allergies If your child has any special health considerations or food allergies, please share that
information with your child’s teacher, the school office, and/or the school nurse.

Students with food allergies:
● Must have an Emergency Care Plan in place and have necessary, up to date

medications at school
● Should not receive any treats or foods at school unless provided by their

parents or food services.
● If you have any questions or concerns please contact the school nurses at

888-1480.

Cold/
Wet Weather

Students will be outside for recess unless the temperature is below 15 degrees.
Please make sure your students are dressed appropriately. Unless a student has a
doctor’s note, they will need to go outside. Students will have outdoor recess when it
rains and may use umbrellas during this time.

Lice Head lice are often a fact of life for school-aged children. While inconvenient, head
lice causes no medical harm and can be effectively treated. If a child is found to have
head lice, the following will occur:

9 Revised 4/2023



1. The child’s parent or guardian will be notified by telephone or letter home
stating that prompt, proper treatment of this condition is in the best interest of
the child.

2. The parents of the affected students will be given the handout “Parents Guide
How to Treat and Keep Lice Out of Hair” which has accurate information about
the diagnosis, treatment, and prevention of head lice.

3. It is the practice of the Eastmont School District that healthy children will not be
excluded from or miss school because of head lice.

Illness Students who become ill during the school day are sent to the office. The office staff
will determine whether or not the student should be sent home.

● Anytime a child’s temperature is 100 degrees or higher, we will automatically
call his/her parent to pick up the child from school.

● A child should remain home if he/she has had a fever and/or has been
vomiting within the last 24 hours.

Medication at
School

State laws prohibit us from giving any medications (over-the-counter or prescribed)
without having the following form completed: “Authorization for Administration of
Medication at School.” This form must be filled out and signed by your healthcare
provider and parent. These forms are available in the school office.

School
Insurance

Parents may buy an insurance policy that covers injury received by the child during
the school day. Brochures will be sent home, so that parents who wish may purchase
this coverage.

Vision and
Hearing

Vision and hearing screening is done annually for grades K-3. If a problem is
detected, parents will be notified as soon as possible.

10 Revised 4/2023



School Safety

Student safety is one of the most important aspects of what we do at Eastmont.

Bikes,
Skateboards,
Scooters, and
Shoes with
Wheels

3rd-6th grade students may ride bikes/scooters with helmets to/from school, but are
not allowed to ride them on school grounds or in the parking lot during school hours.

● We encourage children to lock their bicycles to the racks provided.
● Students may not ride skateboards to school and may not wear shoes with

wheels.
● Bicycles and scooters on the sidewalks cause a real safety concern for

parents, students, and staff entering and leaving the buildings. Therefore, we
require bikes and scooters to be walked when on school grounds.

Emergency
Drills

● Fire and other emergency drills are scheduled on a regular basis in
accordance with state law.

● Earthquake drills, emergency evacuation drills, and lockdown drills are also
practiced regularly throughout the year.

Gender-
Inclusive
Schools

Please see Board Policy 3211 for more information.

Harassment,
Intimidation,
or Bullying
(Board Policy)

The Eastmont School District is committed to a safe and civil school environment for
all students, employees, volunteers and patrons, free from harassment, intimidation
and bullying. “Harassment, intimidation, or bullying” means any intentional written,
verbal, or physical act, including, but not limited to one shown to be motivated by any
characteristic in RCW 9A.36.080(3), (race, religion, ancestry, national origin, gender,
sexual orientation or mental or physical disability), or other distinguishing
characteristics, when the intentional written, verbal, or physical act:

● Physically harms a student or damages the student’s property; or
● Has the effect of substantially interfering with a student’s education; or
● Is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it creates an intimidating or

threatening educational environment; or
● Has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of the school.

Harassment, intimidation, or bullying can take many forms including: slurs, rumors,
jokes, innuendos, demeaning comments, drawings, cartoons, pranks, gestures,
physical attacks, threats, or other written, oral or physical actions. “Intentional acts”
refers to the individual’s choice to engage in the act rather than the ultimate impact of
the action(s).

Eastmont School Board Policy 3207 is a component of the District’s responsibility to
create and maintain a safe, civil, respectful and inclusive learning community, and is

11 Revised 4/2023



Harassment,
Intimidation,
or Bullying
(Board Policy)
(continued)

to be implemented in conjunction with comprehensive training of staff and volunteers,
including the education of students in partnership with families and the community.

Board Policy 3207 outlines the Informal and Formal Complaint process. Please notify
the Principal of any acts of harassment, intimidation, or bullying and either the
informal or formal complaint process will be explained to you. Action will be taken
immediately to stop the undesired behavior.

Is it Bullying? We are using this definition to help students understand the difference between mean,
rude, and bullying behavior:

● When someone says or does something unintentionally hurtful and they do it
once, that's RUDE.

● When someone says or does something intentionally hurtful and they do it
once, that's MEAN.

● When someone says or does something intentionally hurtful and they keep
doing it - even when asked to stop or are upset - that's BULLYING.

Possession or
Use of
Tobacco
Products,
Alcohol,
Drugs, or
Weapons

● Students in the Eastmont School District are not allowed to possess or use any
tobacco products, alcohol, illegal drugs, weapons or pseudo-weapons while
attending school or school functions.

● Weapons and pseudo-weapons shall include any item construed to be a
weapon, including, but not limited to: "switch-blade" combs, replicas of guns,
knives, throwing stars, and num-chuks.

● Use or possession of such products will result in disciplinary action up to
expulsion, and immediate contact of parents and/or law enforcement officials.

Public Display
of Affection

● As an elementary campus, we do not allow students to hold hands on campus
or engage in any other public display of affection.

12 Revised 4/2023



School
Closure Due to
Weather /
Inside Recess

Inclement weather may cause school to begin late or school may be canceled for the
day.

For information on school closures:
● Monitor ParentSquare for announcements.
● Our school website and the District’s website at www.eastmont206.org will

have any school closure information and will be updated by 6:30AM.
● Media will be notified immediately of ANY type of school schedule change.
● You may also call the District Weather Hotline at 888-1111.
● Please do NOT call the school. Telephone lines must be kept open in case of

an emergency.

Students will remain indoors when the outdoor temperature drops below 15 degrees
or when air quality is deemed dangerous. The District Office makes the decision as to
when we remain inside for air quality. Students will go outside when it is raining or
snowing, so proper outdoor clothing is essential.

Technology/
Internet
Access and
Web
Publishing

All students will be given internet access, unless parents opt their child out using the
Parent Release and Student Use Form 2022-F2.
Student projects, classroom activities, and student work may be showcased on the
school or District websites and social media pages. Only relevant information will be
included (i.e., first name, picture, participation, grade level, etc…) Parents may opt
out of this option.

Visitors -
Students

Allowing our students to bring other children to school causes a disruption to learning
and is a liability issue. Therefore, we must deny any such requests.

Technology/
Internet Safety

Students must agree to the following rules for using technology:
1. I will not let other students use my name and password.
2. I will not use bad language or pictures.
3. I will respect others.
4. I will follow all school rules while using the computer.
5. I understand that all my computer work will be checked by the teacher and

computer privileges will be revoked if I break the computer rules.
6. I will not damage the computer and will stay in my own area on the computer.
7. Downloading of any programs, games, music, or any other software is strictly

prohibited.
If devices are damaged due to negligent use by the student, repair and or
replacement costs may be charged to the student’s account.

Threat and
Threat
Assessment

● Students may not threaten to hurt or kill another person or threaten to cause
damage to the school.

13 Revised 4/2023

http://www.eastmont206.org/


● As in airports and other public places, these kinds of words, joking or
otherwise, are absolutely not allowed. The safety of students is our top priority
at school.

● Threats to kill or cause bodily injury to people or destroy property will be taken
seriously.

● Depending on the seriousness and nature of the threat, a student may be
detained, sent home from school, or separated from others while a threat
assessment is completed.

● Police may be contacted.

Volunteers and
Parent
Visitation

ALL volunteers are required to fill out a Volunteer Disclosure Form.
The Volunteer Disclosure Form is available on the District’s website at
www.eastmont206.org - District Information - Parents & Community - Volunteer Form
(online). These forms must be renewed each school year.

● Parents and other adults are encouraged to volunteer. Please make
arrangements with the teacher if you wish to volunteer.

● Parents are welcome to visit the classroom. Prior arrangements need to be
made with the classroom teacher.

● Please check in at the office and obtain a visitor pass when you arrive at
school to let us know a visitor is on campus.

Weapon Free
Zone

All Washington schools have been officially defined as “weapon free zones”. The law
has no provision for the age of offenders, so even a kindergartner is expected to know
enough to realize that they should never bring a gun or dangerous weapon to school.
Squirt guns and any other toy replicas of weapons are also strictly prohibited.

Student Data and Information

Custody
Documents/
Parenting Plan

Refer to Eastmont School Board Policy 3126.
● Questions regarding custody issues and disputes should be referred to your

attorney.
● Schools do not have the authority to enforce Parenting Plans.

Directory
Information

Most information about Eastmont School District students cannot be made public
without consent of parents or guardians. Federal law prohibits schools from releasing
information without permission, except for what is termed “directory information.”

● Directory information about students may be released by the District without
parental consent. The District will not release directory information for
commercial purposes.

● Directory information is defined as the student’s name, photograph, address,
grade level, dates of attendance, participation in officially recognized activities

14 Revised 4/2023

http://www.eastmont206.org


and sports, weight and height of members of athletic teams, diplomas and
awards received, and the most recent previous school attended.

● Photos of students are sometimes used in District or school-produced
publications or for use by the news media. The District takes special care not
to identify the photographed students by name in most cases. However,
published photos in yearbooks, student/school newspapers, school
handbooks, etc., are considered public domain and can be reproduced by the
media.

● Parents/guardians who do not want their student directory information released
complete the “FERPA Do Not Disclose Student Directory Information Form” in
our school office or on the District’s website.

Duplicate
Student
Information

We try to be sensitive to the needs of all family structures, while maintaining a neutral
environment for our students.

● If your child is part of a multiple household family and double notices/
information is preferred, please note that when registering/let the office know.

● We will send duplicates home for anything we mail, but are not able to replicate
the items carried home by students.

● We request that parents meet together for school conferences.

Enrollment
Cards and
Emergency
Information

Each year we send home an Enrollment Card Update Form and Health Information
Form for you to complete. It is extremely important that both of these be filled out
and returned to school immediately.

● The card provides the information necessary to reach you if your child should
become ill or be injured at school.

● If there are any changes in your phone or emergency contacts during the year,
please call the office with your new information.

● Address changes the use of the District’s “Change of Address Form” with
corresponding proof of address required.

Lost and
Found

We have a designated lost and found area that we encourage parents to check often.
● Please mark all clothing with your child’s name. Marked clothing helps facilitate

identification and return.
● Students are responsible to look for their own lost items. Parents are also

welcome to come to this area to look for lost items.
● Periodically, articles are donated to various charitable organizations.
● We are not responsible for any lost items.

Parent Input
for Class
Placement

Creating class lists is very much like putting together a difficult puzzle. We must look
at numerous factors in determining student placement (i.e., equity for gender, special
learning needs, learning styles, program needs, parental input, behavior concerns,
etc.) The more information we have on a child, the easier it is to “place” children into
the correct spot in our “class roster puzzle.” We can guarantee that we will carefully
look at your input, but we cannot guarantee a particular teacher for your child. As
mentioned previously, parental input, although very important, is only one of many
factors we must weigh as we place students into classes.

15 Revised 4/2023



We will send parents information about providing parent input after Spring Break.
These forms are due back by April 30th. Thank you for providing us with additional
information regarding your child’s strengths and needs.

Pictures It is a tradition in the Eastmont School District to have individual and group pictures
taken. A commercial photographer takes these pictures and makes them available to
students and parents for a fee. The individual pictures are taken in the fall and the
class pictures are taken in the spring.

Student
Records

We maintain student records necessary for the educational guidance and welfare of
our students, for orderly and efficient operation of school, and as required by law.
This information is treated in a professional and confidential manner.

Student Dress Refer to Eastmont School Board Policy 3224.

Student dress will be regulated when, in the judgment of school administrators, there
is a reasonable expectation that:

● Health or safety hazard will be presented by the student’s dress or
appearance, including possible membership in a gang or hate groups;

● Damage to school property will result from the student’s dress; or
● A material and substantial disruption of the educational process will result from

the student’s dress or appearance.

Transportation

Parents and Guardians:
Please discuss these bus passenger rules and procedures with your child. Your child should appreciate
the important part that he/she plays in accomplishing SAFE and EFFICIENT transportation throughout
the District.

Your child should understand that riding a school bus is a privilege conditioned on appropriate, safe, and
respectful behavior. Unruly conduct on the bus is a very real risk to the safe operation of a school bus.
Your cooperation in communicating this very important message would be most appreciated.

Transportation Department Parent Handbook and Bus Rules: https://www.eastmont206.org/departments/transportation/index

Bus Service
Eligibility

● Bus service is only provided for those beyond the one radius mile for all
grades. Students residing within the one mile radius will need to safely find
other means to get to/from school.

● Exceptions are made only when safety concerns are identified by the
transportation office.

● In order to change their normal bus and/or stop, students must obtain a pass
from the school office.

16 Revised 4/2023

https://www.eastmont206.org/departments/transportation/index


 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
  Matt Charlton, Assistant Supt. Secondary Education 
 
SUBJECT: Eastmont High School Student Handbook for 2023-24 
 
DATE:  June 12, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
Enclosed is a draft Eastmont High School Student Handbook for 2023-24 for the Board 
to review.  All changes are highlighted in yellow.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Student Handbook ☒None          
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends the Board approve the Eastmont High School Student 
Handbook for 2023-24. 



���������������	��
���������������������������������� !"#�!$�%&#�'()*+,%-.��/00�123�456�78��89:5�;<=95>?<<@�;A�/BBCD��EF><�G0C/H�BBIJKKK0��LAM�G0C/H�BBIJBBC0��NOPQRSTQ�PUVSSW�XYPQZYUQ�[\]̂��BCC�89:5_̀ =5�Aa<6��89:5�;<=95>?<<@�;A�/BBCD��EF><�G0C/H�BBIJbcK/��LAM�G0C/H�BBIJIDcC��def�ghijk�ghelm��nopqrstuqtvqtu��wxyz�{|x}~�w��y��x�����q�ous�q��srq�u�r�����st�t�s����nqr�s�q���wxz�w|���{�|x���~��������s�u�tu�nopqrstuqtvqtu���q�ous�q���srq�u�r����nq��tv�r���vo��us�t��wxz����~��x��|}��x�����q�ous�q��srq�u�r������q�qtu�r����vo��us�t��wxyz��|}�|��x��~�����q�ous�q��srq�u�r�����o��t��q��or�q���g� ¡d��¢�d£¡¤¥¦�¡§��̈©ª�«¬®̄�°±²̄³����������̈ª�́µ²¶̄±·�̧¹²¶µ��̈©ª�̧¶±º±�»²¼¼²©²½½®�����̈ª�¾²̄¿·�́©²Àµ¶��̈ª�̈±¬Àµ¬̄�Á²ÂÂ±©¶�Mrs. Kim Browning, Executive Director Learning & Teaching



�������������	
��
����
�
������������������������������������ !"#$��%&%"�'�(�#)"�$��"*��+!)��%�$,��-�)!"#$�%*#.%/�-#0$1/�-�)�+!� �/�-�%�)"%/�2�-�%#)#�� ��
������������3����������456789:;�87<=:5:;�>7;5:?�@7=7A��B��C����D���E��F78<G9:?@5H?�<=7�6I:J<K7:L<8�L9�=7<M@5:;�<:J�L7<M@5:;�96�?LIJ7:L?��E��NLIJ7:L?�KI?L�6778�?<67�5:�9=J7=�L9�87<=:��E��O88�?LIJ7:L?�:77J�L9�@<P7�<�M9::7MG9:�L9�<L�87<?L�9:7�M<=5:;�<JI8L�<L�QRN��E��S@7�?L<T�<L�QRN�:77J?�L9�5:P98P7�<:J�M9KKI:5M<L7�U5L@�H<=7:L?�<:J��;I<=J5<:?�5:�9=J7=�L9�M=7<L7�<�H<=L:7=?@5H�69=�L@7�>7:7VL�96�9I=�?LIJ7:L?��E��O88�?LIJ7:L?�M<:�87<=:��E��Q<M@�?LIJ7:L�5?�P<8I7J�<?�<:�5:J5P5JI<8�U5L@�I:5WI7�5:L7887MLI<8X�H@Y?5M<8X��?9M5<8X�<:J�7K9G9:<8�:77J?��E��OZ7:J<:M7�5?�M=5GM<8�L9�L@7�<M<J7K5M�?IMM7??�96�9I=�?LIJ7:L?�

�[�



��������������	
�����������������������������
������������������������� !"#$%"�&'($$)�*+!",+'"�-$.!�%$"�-+!',+#+% ".�+%� %/�0,$1, #!�$,� '23+2.!�$%�"(.�4 !+!�$5�!.67�, '.7�',..-7��,.)+1+$%7�'$)$,7�% 2$% )�$,+1+%7� 1.7�3."., %�$,�#+)+" ,/�!" "8!7�!.68 )�$,+.%" 2$%7�1.%-.,��.60,.!!+$%��$,��+-.%2"/7�-+! 4+)+"/7�$,�"(.�8!.�$5� �", +%.-�-$1�18+-.�$,�!.,3+'.� %+# )� %-�0,$3+-.!�.98 )� ''.!!�"$�"(.�:$/��&'$8"!� %-�$"(.,�-.!+1% ".-�/$8"(�1,$80!;�<(.�5$))$=+%1�.#0)$/..!�( 3.�4..%�-.!+1% ".-�"$�( %-).��98.!2$%!� %-�'$#0) +%"!�$5� )).1.-�-+!',+#+% 2$%>��?+3+)�@+1("!�?$$,-+% "$,� %-�<+").�AB�?$$,-+% "$,7�C /) �:,$=%���6.'823.�*+,.'"$,�$5�D8# %�@.!$8,'.!��EFF�� !"#$%"�G3.%8.��� !"�H.% "'(..7�HG��IEEFJ��KFILEEMLNOPI��4,$=%QR. !"#$%"JFP;$,1��&.'2$%�KFM�?$$,-+% "$,��S T�?( ,)"$%7�G!!+!" %"�&80.,+%".%-.%"U�6.'823.�*+,.'"$,�$5�&.'$%- ,/��-8' 2$%��EFF�� !"#$%"�G3.%8.��� !"�H.% "'(..7�HG��IEEFJ��KFILEEMLNOPI��'( ,)"$%#R. !"#$%"JFP;$,1��VWX�YZ[�\]̂W\_�̀abY\aca[ZdW[�Z[̀�̀abY\aca[Z_W\e�fZ\Zbbc][_��"$� %/�!'($$)�!" g�#.#4.,�$,�"$�"(.�-+!",+'"h!��?+3+)�@+1("!�?$$,-+% "$,7�)+!".-� 4$3.;�i$8� )!$�( 3.�"(.�,+1("�"$�j).� �'$#0) +%"�k!..�4.)$=l;�m$,� �'$0/�$5�/$8,��-+!",+'"n!�%$%-+!',+#+% 2$%�0$)+'/� %-�0,$'.-8,.7�'$%" '"�/$8,�!'($$)�$,�-+!",+'"�$o'.�$,�3+.=�+"�$%)+%.� "��===;. !"#$%"JFP;$,1��;���pqr�s�t������p����&"8-.%"!� %-�!" g� ,.�0,$".'".-� 1 +%!"�!.68 )�( , !!#.%"�4/� %/$%.�+%� %/�!'($$)�0,$1, #�$,� '23+"/7��+%')8-+%1�$%�"(.�!'($$)�' #08!7�$%�"(.�!'($$)�48!7�$,�$gL' #08!�-8,+%1� �!'($$)L!0$%!$,.-� '23+"/;��u]vXZw�fZ\Zbbc][_�ab�X[x]wYWc]�y]fZzaW\�W\�YWccX[aYZdW[�_fZ_�ab�b]vXZw�a[�[Z_X\]�xf][{��|��G�!"8-.%"�$,�.#0)$/..�+!�).-�"$�4.)+.3.�"( "�(.�$,�!(.�#8!"�!84#+"�"$�8%=.)'$#.�!.68 )�'$%-8'"�$,��'$##8%+' 2$%!�+%�$,-.,��"$�1 +%�!$#."(+%1�+%�,."8,%7�!8'(� !� �1, -.7� �0,$#$2$%7� �0) '.�$%� �!0$,"!��". #7�$,� %/�.-8' 2$% )�$,�.#0)$/#.%"�-.'+!+$%7�$,��|��<(.�'$%-8'"�!84!" %2 ))/�+%".,5.,.!�=+"(� �!"8-.%"h!�.-8' 2$% )�0.,5$,# %'.7�$,�',. ".!� %�+%2#+- 2%1��$,�($!2).�.-8' 2$% )�$,�.#0)$/#.%"�.%3+,$%#.%";��}vZĉ w]b�W~�u]vXZw��Z\Zbbc][_{��|���,.!!8,+%1� �0.,!$%�5$,�!.68 )�5 3$,!��|���%=.)'$#.�"$8'(+%1�$5� �!.68 )�% "8,.��|��H,+2%1�1, o2�$5� �!.68 )�% "8,.��|��*+!",+482%1�!.68 ))/�.60)+'+"�".6"!7�.L# +)!7�$,�0+'"8,.!��|��S Q+%1�!.68 )��$Q.!7�,8#$,!7�$,�!811.!23.�,.# ,Q!��|���(/!+' )�3+$).%'.7�+%')8-+%1�, 0.� %-�!.68 )� !! 8)"� ���



����������	
�����	�����������	����������������������������������������� ��� ��!��" ����#$�%&���'�(��� ��� ���������)�*�+�,��������)������� -������.��������/�� ���0��������(1*�2�������/���3���,��� ��� ��4����5,���������������/�� �������/�����,��'�����������,������������� ��� ����&��'����) �(� ����� �����6��(((*��������789*��-��*��:;<=;>�?<@ABC?D<�C@EDDAC��F����������������/�� ���G7HH�3�������� �3����I��*��@DJKAL?<M�DKM?D<CN�=?C@>?J?<LM?D<�L<=�C;OBLA�EL>LCCJ;<M��#3���,���� �)���������,������,���� �����)���5/�� ������,���(3,��� ��� � ��I��'�� ��� � �����������������'�������5,�����������������������'���,���)������� -������.��������/�� ��*��P�3����.� �-������/�� ��'���,������ ��,�����,�����������( �����,���� ��4��/� �� /������( ��������������� ��� ��4���Q��I���R8S�T���� �����'�" ����#$�%&���'����T ) ��U -����T���� �����'�(�������� ��������)�*�"� �� ���V��������3�������(�����������)����,����������*��W��
��X��������	�Y������ZX���X����[\]̂�_̀��abcde�fgd�higb�jiklmncod��#������������'����/�� �����,������.����( �� �����������3��������������3����� �� ������������,�������� ��������,�p�����3��������/�� ��*�q����/�� ����,������ ��(� I�-*�P���,����������� �����������,������ �� ����'��5/�� ���(�����,���� �)��� ��� � ��I��'�� ��� � �����������������'������5,��������������������r���/����'����������� ���(������I������,���� �)������� ��� ������,�����r����������)������/������*�Q������,��(� s�������/�� ��t����� �'�3�5'���� �'������������ )���t�������� ��� ����,/�� ������������� ) ��� -�������/� ����������� �����*��[\]̂�uv��wxyiim�zc{dbcxd�|o}e{~�nde{�higb�jiklmncod��%��������� ��� ������� )�����,��(� s������/�� ��'���������� ������( ���- )����,�����/���3��������/�� ����/�����,���������r���,�����/���/�����������,-�� �)��I-�I�����r���/����*�"����,/�� ��������������� -�����( ������/���������,� ��(� I�-�( �� ��G8��������������t,��������,��-���������� �������I���/�� ��*�#3���,������/�� ��� �)��)����5��/I������ ��,��������������������������-�� ��� �)��I-�I��'������ ��� ���( �����I3�����,� ��(� I�-�����5/�� ��(���������������I����5���� �������������(������3������ ��(� s������/����*��[\]̂��v��wxyiim�zc{dbcxd��e{lio�{�di�higb�jiklmncod��#�� ���(� s������/����'������ ��� ���( ��� ���,������,�������3��������,�����3����� �)��I-�I��'��������� ��I�����3�(������������������� ��� ���3� ����������/���( ���� ) ��� -������(�'���I.��I����������,������//������ ��������� ��I��'�������������,������������������� �-������ ��� ��� �������/� �����( ���� ) ��� -������(�*��T�����I)������,����( ������/,�� ����������( �� ��G8����������������V����� ��(� s������/����t,��������,���-���������� �������I���/�� ��*���

	��������	�Y������ZX���X����#3���,�� ��-����( ��������������� ��� ��4����� � ��'���,������//������������������� ��� ��4���������3�� �������*��+�,��,���.�������I����3��//���� ��(� I�-�������������������3������������������( �� ��H8����������������V������,����� )��������������� ��� ��4�����/����������,�����/�� ��*�"����������������( ��������,��������� �-�( �� ���78����������������V������������ )�����,���//���'�,��������,��-���������� �������I��� ��*�"�����������������( ����������,���(� s������ � ���( �� ��G8����������������V�������� ��� ������� )�����,����I����3��//���*�"����������������4����� � ���( ��� ���,��� �3����I������,����(����.��������/�� ���( �������%&����3��Q,/�� ����������3�F,�� ��#����,�I���0%QF#1*��W��
��X�������Y����#3���,���������-����( ��������������� ��� ��4���//������� � ��'���������(�/��) ���������/I������.�����3����������/�� ���( �������%&����3�Q,/�� ����������3�F,�� ��#����,�I���0%QF#1*�"� �� ������/���������/�� ���/����������



���������������	
��������������������������������������������������������	
�����������������������	
����������		��
�	����������������������������������

����������	
����������		��
�	������������
������������� ���
�������������!
������	
�������"#$%��������������������������������������������		��
����������������������&�����	
�����������'(���������)���
�*�+����",������"#$%���-./012��'(����3�����������4��5/62��78 988:9�;8<��=/01�>?�@/AB�BC10DC?2��$"�EF�:<�  ��8  �G�����+����#���#�'���"
��	����GH�;IJ :9<�  ��K������������������������������������L'(����L)�	
��������	F��������������"#$%���'(���������)���
�*�+�����",������78 9<�J98�8�LMM���78 988:9787����N���9���
������(����3��������������OPQRS�TUVWSUXUYZ[\Y�]\X̂ _ZUYP�Ô[\YV��̀abc�def�ghihj�khlmnop�qrsr�tcuvfnwcxn�ed�yz{bv|ex��}~���~����~~�������������~~������������������������������������������������������vomhxlnex�snvnc��{wvx�khlmno�gewwhoohex�����~~�}����}��������� �����~~��~~��¡}¡���������¢£¤��������

�¥�



����������	�
�����
������������������������������������ !"#$!#%��"&%�'$�()��'"#*%+#�+%�(!"&$!*!+'�'�+!+,-+�.$%,$'*'�%�'&/0!('(�1'"'('�)+�")2%3�$'4'3�&$)(%3��$)�!,!5+3�&%�%$3�%$!,)+�+'&!%+'�3�)('(3�0)#)$'+'�%�*!�!#'$3��6789:;<=8>:�?9@A<BC�9@D79?8>:�6�8E9:FE<E��E9��GH:976C��(!"&'.'&!('(3�%�)��I"%�()�I+�.)$$%�,IJ'�)+#$)+'(%��%�'+!*'��()�")$0!&!%�K�.$%.%$&!%+'�I+�'&&)"%��)LI!#'/0%�'��%"�M%K�N&%I#"�K�%#$%"�,$I.%"�OI0)+!�)"�()"!,+'(%"P�Q%"�"!,I!)+#)"�)*.�)'(%"�R'+�"!(%��()"!,+'(%"�.'$'�*'+)O'$��'"�.$),I+#'"�K�LI)O'"�()�"I.I)"#'�(!"&$!*!+'&!5+S��TUUVWXYZWUVZ�W[�T\]̂ _X]X[ỲU�W[�a[V[bcUd�TXeX_[df�TUUVWXYZWUVZ�W[_�gh̀\_U�ijf�kZl_Z��mVUnY��aXV[b̀UVZ�op[b\̀XeZ�W[�q[b\VdUd�r\]ZYUd��stt�oZd̀]UỲ�ue[YXWZ��oZd̀�v[YZ̀bc[[f�vu�wsstx��ytwzss{z|}~w���VUnY��[Zd̀]UỲxt~�UV����[bbX�Y�yt{�W[���XbXZ_�W[�T\]̂ _X]X[ỲU��od̀\WXZỲ[d����Z̀�̀TcZV_̀UYf�aXV[b̀UV�op[b\̀XeU�W[�oW\bZbX�Y��[b\YWZVXZ��stt�oZd̀]UỲ�ue[YXWZ��oZd̀�v[YZ̀bc[[f�vu�wsstx��ytwzss{z|}~w��bcZV_̀UY]�[Zd̀]UỲxt~�UV�������������������������������������������������������������������'�&I'�LI!)$�*!)*1$%�()��.)$"%+'��()��'��)"&I)�'�%�'���%%$(!+'(%$�()� )$)&R%"��!0!�)"�()��(!"#$!#%3�LI)�'.'$)&)�'$$!1'P��"#)(�#'*1!�+�/)+)�)���()$)&R%�()�.$)")+#'$�I+'�LI)O'��0�'")�* "�'()�'+#)¡P�¢'$'�%1#)+)$�I+'�&%.!'�()��'�.%�J/&'�()�+%��(!"&$!*!+'&!5+�()�"I�(!"#$!#%�K�)��.$%&)(!*!)+#%3�.5+,'")�)+�&%+#'&#%�&%+�"I�%£&!+'�)"&%�'$�%�(!"#$!#%�%��0)$�%�)+��J+)'�)+��¤¤¤P)'"#*%+#¥¦§P%$,��P��̈©ª«ª�«¬®̈ �̄�Q%"�)"#I(!'+#)"�K�)��.)$"%+'��)"# +�.$%#),!(%"�&%+#$'�)��'&%"%�")2I'��.%$�.'$#)�()�&I'�LI!)$�.)$"%+'�)+��&I'�LI!)$�.$%,$'*'�%�'&/0!('(�()��'�)"&I)�'3�!+&�IK)+(%�)+�)��&'*.I"�()��'�)"&I)�'3�)+�)��'I#%1-"��)"&%�'$3�%�°I)$'�()��'�)"&I)�'�(I$'+#)�I+'�'&/0!('(�.'#$%&!+'('�.%$��'�)"&I)�'P��±����������²����������������������������������������������³������������������́����²����������µ��¶���+�)"#I(!'+#)�%�)*.�)'(%�")��)�R'&)�&$))$�LI)����%�)��'�()1)�"%*)#)$")�'��'�&%+(I&#'�")2I'��+%��()")'('�%��'"�&%*I+!&'&!%+)"�&%+�)��£+�()�%1#)+)$�'�,%�'�&'*1!%3�&%*%�I+�,$'(%3�I+'��.$%*%&!5+3�I+��I,'$�)+�I+�)LI!.%�().%$/0%3�%�&I'�LI!)$�()&!"!5+�)(I&'/0'�%�()�)*.�)%3�%��·��Q'�&%+(I&#'�!+#)$£)$)�"I"#'+&!'�*)+#)�&%+�)��$)+(!*!)+#%�'&'(�*!&%�()��)"#I(!'+#)3�%�&$)'�I+��'*1!)+#)�)(I&'/0%�%��'1%$'��!+/*!('#%$!%�I�R%"/�P��±̧��¹���������������²���µ��¶��¢$)"!%+'$�'�I+'�.)$"%+'�.'$'�°'0%$)"�")2I'�)"��¶���%+#'&#%�º"!&%�+%�()")'(%�()�J+(%�)�")2I'���¶��Q'�)"&$!#I$'�()�,$'»/�()�+'#I$'�)4'�")2I'�� �¼�



�����������	�
�������������������	�����������������������������	������������������������������������������	��������������������������	������������	����
������������	� ������������������!"#$#�%&'()*+)�$#�+,(-(�-#."+/��������0���������1���
�������	���
�����������������23�����
���4�����56��
���
��������
������������	�����7�8���
����1�9	���	�����
������
�������	�����	��0��:��;�9����������
���	��<7�=����1��	����	�������
������������
�������������
�����
������� ��������
����	������	�����������3��	����������
���������������	���	����	>��???7�����	�@AB7����CDEFCGHD�IC�JKEGFDJLK�IC�MNKCOP��Q	����������������R@SS�
����������
�������������1��	��������	�������	7��TJHD�IC�OCEGHUHEJPKV�IJDEOJUJKHEJLK�W�HEPDP�DCXFHG��Y�������0�������
�������:������������	��
�
�������	����	�������������
�������	��������������������	�����������������
���	�����
������
�������	�����	��0��:�7��Z	����
�������	�����	��0��:������
��
��������������������	����	����
�������
�������:���	�����Q�
�	�
��
�����Y�����	�[A\�
���
������������������23�����
���4�����56������Q�
�	�
��
�����������Q��������0�������	��	�����������	�����7�]����������	�
������	������������
��������������������������	��7��̂"#_+�+/�̀%-a)%a(�b-,(/+)��!+-(�cd��]����1��Y��e��:���]	������ ����
���������������0��:���
�1�	����������	��
���
�	���
���	��f�
��
�����������
�����	��
�	�����	
�����0������1:���
�����0��:�7�8	��0��:��
�1���������������7�Z���g�����
��
�����1��������	
�������	��
�	���������0������0�9������0���
�������	����	������
�������	������������������������	�
�������� �
�����1����������	���0��������0������
�������
�1�������������������������1����7�]	��9�����0��:����������������������������	�����	�����������	����������	��	
�	���
��
��������������
�	�
�����������	��
�����
��������������7��!+-(�hd��]����������]������5	�������Y��e��:���8	����i�0������
�����������1�����0��:������������������
�	�
�����
�����	�������
�������
����	��
���0��:�� ��������������
��0����	���	���������	��	��
����� ���������������������17�]��������	��	
�	���������	��
����	�
������	
����������
�����������
�	���
��RA�
��������	
����������	��0�������
�������
�������
��	��	�����
�
�������
�����	��7�Y�����0��:�������3�����������	���	������������	�����0���������	��	���	���������	���������	�������
����������	�3�����������������������������0�9��������	����	���������	������	���	�
������� ����	��������������������������������������7��!+-(�jd��]����������]����������	
�����0��:���]	����������������������������
��������	��������	�������	�
������������
��
������	���������	������
������	����	�
������	����������
����
��������	������� ���
��
�������������������	�3�����	�
��0����������
��������������
������	����	���������������
�
���	���������������0������
��������	���	����
�
��	������� ���
��
��������������7�������
�
���������������������	���������
�	���
�����RA��
����	���������
���������������������������������	��0�����������	�����
�
�������
�����	��7� �k�



��������	
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������ ����������!����������"#�����������������������$�%�&�� ���������������"'����������� �������� �������������������������������!����������������������������()��*����������������� �+�����,�&�������&���������� ��������������������������������-��!�$�.��!�������������� ��/��0��������������������������������1)��*������������������ �+�����,�&�������&��������� �����������0�����-������+����������������"�0 ����2������$�.��!������������������#������������������� �������������������������3)��*���������������� �+�����-�������������������&�������#�������� �������$�.������������������!������������������������2��0��������&�����0�� �������������-��!����������4'������������ ����������������5�����������67&�����84�659$��:;�<����=>?@����������������������������������������������� �����������������������������������A��������� �� ������������� �������� �������������-��!��2��0�����������4'����������� ����������������5�����������67&�����84�659$����������������� ����������-��!������� ���������-��� �������������/���������,�� ��������������������������������������B�8(9�-���,�A����0 ���������� ����������-��!���A�� ��������������������������819�����������������,����/�������� ����������-��!���A�� ������������������0����$��C�����"����1)��*��������������� ���� �������������-��!����4�65�����������*�����-�������&������������������&������� �������$�6�������#�������-��!�� ����������������4'��������%����,���D�#�����A��-���������4�65B��EFGHIJ��K-���ALM(1$N�$����O��PGQJ��3R)SRRTS1URV��EWXYZ[G�G�FGW\J��64�]�̂�TV1))��R))�_��,��/������$��$K$���4�A0 ����_̀ �Uab)TSV1))��6����0�����2��0�������#�������NNN$M(1$N�$��cK-���AcD�0 ������$�� ̂������������������.��4'���������%����,���D�#��������3R)SV1bSR(R1cddeB�3R)SRRTS3R3(� ����S0���������-���ALM(1$N�$����$��=����=����
��?����f����g�����h����g�
���	
��ijkl�mno�pqrqs�tquvwxy�z{|{�}l~�ow�l�w�nm����k��n���1)RSR)VS(R))���d%%B�(Sa))SaVVSa33U����4D�$������L��$/�#�����NNN$��$/�#c�������xvq�uwn��|w�wl�������tquvwx�pn��qxxqn���(Sa))S133S31TV���ddeB�(Sa))S3))SVb1b����NNN$,�0$N�$/�#�
���



�����������������	�
�������	���	�����	���������	�������������	��������������	������������������ ���!�"�#��!�� �"#$���%��&'(�)*+,-.�/012*3,45*-�6,7'38�*50�9:,;*2.�<23�=)/69<>�*??4:08�@*:(538�*50�8310(538�4;(:�AB�.(*:8�4?�*7(��=C(-,7,D-(�8310(538E>�2(:3*,5�:,7'38�F,3'�:(8@(23�34�3'(�8310(53G8�(012*3,45�:(24:08H�&'(8(�:,7'38�*:(I��A>� �&'(�:,7'3�34�,58@(23�*50�:(;,(F�3'(�8310(53G8�(012*3,45�:(24:0�F,3',5�JK�0*.8�4?�3'(�0*.�3'(�L2'44-�:(2(,;(8��*�:(M1(83�?4:�*22(88H��9*:(538�4:�(-,7,D-(�8310(538�8'41-0�81D+,3�34�3'(�L2'44-�@:,52,@*-�N4:�*@@:4@:,*3(�82'44-�4??,2,*-O�*�F:,33(5��:(M1(83�3'*3�,0(53,?,(8�3'(�:(24:0=8>�3'(.�F,8'�34�,58@(23H�&'(�L2'44-�4??,2,*-�F,--�+*P(�*::*57(+(538�?4:��*22(88�*50�543,?.�3'(�@*:(53�4:�(-,7,D-(�8310(53�4?�3'(�3,+(�*50�@-*2(�F'(:(�3'(�:(24:08�+*.�D(�,58@(23(0H��Q>� �&'(�:,7'3�34�:(M1(83�3'(�*+(50+(53�4?�3'(�8310(53G8�(012*3,45�:(24:08�3'*3�3'(�@*:(53�4:�(-,7,D-(�8310(53��D(-,(;(8�*:(�,5*221:*3(H��9*:(538�4:�(-,7,D-(�8310(538�+*.�*8P�3'(�L2'44-�34�*+(50�*�:(24:0�3'*3�3'(.�D(-,(;(�,8�,5*221:*3(H�&'(.��8'41-0�F:,3(�34�3'(�L2'44-�@:,52,@*-�N4:�*@@:4@:,*3(�82'44-�4??,2,*-OR�2-(*:-.�,0(53,?.�3'(�@*:3�4?�3'(�:(24:0��3'(.�F*53�2'*57(0R�*50�8@(2,?.�F'.�,3�,8�,5*221:*3(H�S?�3'(�L2'44-�0(2,0(8�543�34�*+(50�3'(�:(24:0�*8��:(M1(83(0�D.�3'(�@*:(53�4:�(-,7,D-(�8310(53R�3'(�L2'44-�F,--�543,?.�3'(�@*:(53�4:�(-,7,D-(�8310(53�4?�3'(��0(2,8,45�*50�*0;,8(�3'(+�4?�3'(,:�:,7'3�34�*�'(*:,57�:(7*:0,57�3'(�:(M1(83�?4:�*+(50+(53H�<00,3,45*-��,5?4:+*3,45�:(7*:0,57�3'(�'(*:,57�@:42(01:(8�F,--�D(�@:4;,0(0�34�3'(�@*:(53�4:�(-,7,D-(�8310(53�F'(5��543,?,(0�4?�3'(�:,7'3�34�*�'(*:,57H��T>� �&'(�:,7'3�34�2458(53�34�0,82-481:(�4?�@(:845*--.�,0(53,?,*D-(�,5?4:+*3,45�2453*,5(0�,5�3'(�8310(53G8��(012*3,45�:(24:08R�(U2(@3�34�3'(�(U3(53�3'*3�)/69<�*13'4:,V(8�0,82-481:(�F,3'413�2458(53H��W5(�(U2(@3,45R�F',2'�@(:+,38�0,82-481:(�F,3'413�2458(53R�,8�0,82-481:(�34�82'44-�4??,2,*-8�F,3'�-(7,3,+*3(��(012*3,45*-�,53(:(83H�<�82'44-�4??,2,*-�,8�*�@(:845�(+@-4.(0�D.�3'(�L2'44-�*8�*5�*0+,5,83:*34:R�81@(:;,84:R��,583:1234:R�4:�81@@4:3�83*??�+(+D(:�=,52-10,57�'(*-3'�4:�+(0,2*-�83*??�*50�-*F�(5?4:2(+(53�15,3�@(:8455(->X��*�@(:845�8(:;,57�45�3'(�L2'44-�Y4*:0�X�*�@(:845�4:�24+@*5.�F'4+�3'(�L2'44-�'*8�2453:*23(0�34�@(:?4:+�*��8@(2,*-�3*8P�=812'�*8�*5�*334:5(.R�*10,34:R�+(0,2*-�24581-3*53R�4:�3'(:*@,83>X�4:�*�@*:(53�4?�*�8310(53�8(:;,57��45�*5�4??,2,*-�24++,33((R�812'�*8�*�0,82,@-,5*:.�4:�7:,(;*52(�24++,33((R�4:�*88,83,57�*543'(:�82'44-�4??,2,*-��,5�@(:?4:+,57�',8�4:�'(:�3*8P8H��<�82'44-�4??,2,*-�'*8�*�-(7,3,+*3(�(012*3,45*-�,53(:(83�,?�3'(�4??,2,*-�5((08�34�:(;,(F�*5�(012*3,45*-�:(24:0�,5��4:0(:�34�?1-?,--�',8�4:�'(:�@:4?(88,45*-�:(8@458,D,-,3.H��NW@3,45*-O�Z@45�:(M1(83R�3'(�L2'44-�0,82-48(0�(012*3,45�:(24:08�F,3'413�2458(53�34�4??,2,*-8�4?�*543'(:�82'44-��0,83:,23�,5�F',2'�*�8310(53�8((P8�4:�,53(508�34�(5:4--H��N[W&/I�)/69<�:(M1,:(8�*�82'44-�0,83:,23�34�+*P(�*��:(*845*D-(�*33(+@3�34�543,?.�3'(�@*:(53�4:�8310(53�4?�3'(�:(24:08�:(M1(83�15-(88�,3�83*3(8�,5�,38�*551*-��543,?,2*3,45�3'*3�,3�,53(508�34�?4:F*:0�:(24:08�45�:(M1(83HO��J>� �&'(�:,7'3�34�?,-(�*�24+@-*,53�F,3'�3'(�ZHLH�\(@*:3+(53�4?�/012*3,45�2452(:5,57�*--(7(0�?*,-1:(8�D.�3'(��/*83+453�91D-,2�L2'44-8�34�24+@-.�F,3'�3'(�:(M1,:(+(538�4?�)/69<H��&'(�5*+(�*50�*00:(88�4?�3'(�W??,2(�3'*3�*0+,5,83(:8�)/69<�*:(I��]̂_̀ab�cdàeb�fd_gà̂hei�jkei��lmnm�oiĝpq_ihq�dr�stuêvdh��wxx�y p̂bâht�z{ihui|�n}��} ~̂�̀h�qdh|�of��x�x��w�x�� ���



���������� ��	

	���������	���
�������
� �����������	
��	�	��	���
�������� ����
�������

����� �����������	������	��� �����	������	�������	���	��
� ���������	�
� �����
������
���	��
� �� ��
�����������������!���	�	�	�
��������	�
� ��"��
����������
� ��"��
��������	���
� ��#��
���������
$��
	�	�	�	�
� ��%����������� �������	���	��
�����
�����������	��� �������	��	�������
����������	��
� ��&����

�������������!��������	�����	��
!��������
�'�����
� ��(�
�)�



�������������	
������
��������������������������������� !�"#$% &'��������()*+,�)-�)./+012)3��456778�97:;<=� �>?@A�BC�D�E?EF�GC��HIJK�LM5N�97:;<=� �O?FF�BC�D�E?EF�GC��P)310P1�23-)+Q012)3��HIJK�LM5N� �RR@S>>>A�TGUVWW�XY��Z[68N\5<]4[:̂NK[�Z5\_J\N<� �TGUVWW�AY��Z̀NK̂IK5N�LM5N� �TGUVWW�aY��b77ccNNdJKe�LM5N� �TGUVWW�>Y��f7:K<N8JKe�LM5N� �TGUVWW�@Y��fI;NN;�g�hN56KJ5I8�îj�LM5N� �RRRS@O@F��9NI8[6�k77l�LM5N]m:;<N� �RRRS@O@O��/(,�0nQ232,1+012)3��H;j�oIK5N�m7N88��p�GUqrsqtuv� �Twxyz�@O@@Y��H;j�{7K�Z||7̀��p�BWWqWyury�GUqrsqtuv� �Twxyz�@O@EY��H<j�4[I5JI�9I;̂JN}��BWWqWyury�GUqrsqtuv� �Twxyz�@OORY��H;j�h7l�H5kIN��p�BWWqWyury�GUqrsqtuv� �Twxyz�@O@AY��H;j�{Jl�456l:[~8N;��p�BWWqWyury�GUqrsqtuv���w��qUVsy�U� �Twxyz�@O@XY��H;j�k:<<��I[N;lIK��p�By�vV�s��qUVsy�U� �Twxyz�@O>EY���*2n03P/�P)*3,/�)+,��H;<j��7KKI��:c7�<cJ��Z�i�� �Twxyz�@OOEY��H;<j��J5[7;JI�9JÌ�������o���� �Twxyz�@OOAY��H<j��I:8I�L;\~���H���kJ���� �Twxyz�@OO@Y��H;j�457̀�iI[7K���k7������ �Twxyz�@OO>Y��H;<j��N8<��bNK̂[<NK��T��squv���U�VU��U�����Bvs���v�����rWVv�UY��Twxyz�@OARY��H<j�{NKKJ�N;�f7;[N<�oNl:<��TCVryuv��Vuvy����tt�Uy��U�����ryzY��Twxyz�aXR�Y��H<j�Z<68N���I_Ĵ<7K��T�s���v�GW�s��v��qWyY� �Twxyz�@OOOY��H;j�HJcN�bJ88<��T�s���v�GW�s��v��qWyY� �T���Y��H<j�HI;J|N8�HNK̂N~� :N;;N;7��TCq�Uury�¡Uu¢�u��r��tVsquvqWyY��Twxyz�aXR>Y��H;j��ĴI8�9:;[Î7��TCq�Uury��y�¢Vry�B¢£�suyVY� �Twxyz��@O>OY� �¤¥�



������������	����
���������������������� ��������� � �!"#$%�&'&()��*�+�+,,--.���������� �/�$�0�1�2�$134� �!"#$%�&'5()��*�+�+,,--.���������� �/1667��8191:� �!"#$%�&'55)��*�;<=��>�*�=?@=A��������� �B1CC�1�2�3$D� �!"#$%��&'��(E��)��*F�������������� �G1HH7�I���31:� �!"#$%�&'5J)��*F�������������� �G144�1�21C13� �KLM�N�OPQRS��T,U�A<@����������� �V0�W6���V��9�4� �!"#$%�&''E)��TXL��������� �Y�$D7�2D�$H17� �!"#$%�&'&Z)����<�;�[,,\�*@�� �"3������H�D1:� �!"#$%�JEZ()��]�=�,�̂�����]@�@A,�� �_�6�3��8WH�� �!"#$%�&''J)���@������*�;@?\����.�@�<@A�� �_14����V��9�4� �!"#$%��&'(̀)��[�.=,�@A�� �G1�HH1 1�21CC� �!"#$%�&'&a)��[�@A����� �GW0�D�HH��V�3$14� �!"#$%�&'5&)����;,,<�bU�A� �I��D1001�G144W9� �!"#$%�&'&')����U����c�����.�@�<@A�� �d��D1001�V�00�D�H� �!"#$%�&'&J)���Ue�T,,��@���,��+@<@��U�<�[�.=,�@A���8W9�$����3314� �!"#$%�&'&̀)��X�U�����XA=���c@�@��<���@�� ��1314��f1H1g�4� �!"#$%��&'5h)���i��j�kl	lm��]@e������,U�A� �d�H6�7�n�o3�6�7� �'pEZ�qd�n�Ep&5�rd��]@e���@��� �Y����93�60�H� �!"#$%�&'(a)� �ss�



��������	����
������������������������������� ��!"#��$%���&�$�'(� ��!� ()��*�%� ��" ������+�&"%"���� (�+,�%�(',��������#�-�, �������+�,�.� ��/������� ��!"#��$%���&0������$�'(� ��!� ()��*�#'"(�����'(� ���'%%���0������+�&"%"���� (��+,�%�(',����,���++,�-�(�)1����������� ��$%���&�2"��,"%��3��,(��/�2",�%��,��� (�������&&�&�#�&��,�4'",��� ���/�,�5���" #�� �$�����6')&"%�!"#��$%���&�0���%����'(� ��"��,��+� �")&��/�,�* �7" #������%� �� ����/������� ()��*�� (�/�,��)"(" #�)1�����,'&���� (�,�#'&�.� ���'�&" �(����,�" 0��8 ����������� ��$%���&�2"��,"%�9�:����;,�(��"�� ����+�1�"%�&&1���+�,���/�����!"#��$%���&<���7�-�,��!"#��$%���&�"��&�#�&&1�(�= �(����#,�(���:>?@�" �����$������/�5���" #�� 0��A�',��,� �%,"+��� (�!"#��$%���&��,�%�,(�)�#" �" �;,�(��:�� (�%� %&'(��7"���#,�('�.� 0������%�',��7�,*9��B� (� %��� (�("�%"+&" ���,�%�,(�9��C�,�%',,"%'&�,��%.-"�1�+�,.%"+�.� 9�� (��&&���+�%����/�����:���#,�(���('%�.� �&��C+�,"� %���,�������=,���1��,��/�1�',�!"#��$%���&�%�,��,0���D����D���8 ��,(�,����+�,.%"+����" ����������� ��!"#��$%���&�E���� %��� ��E�,��� 19���'(� ����'��������������,�4'",��� �������/�,���" �)��,(�+,�%�(',��@F?G6��0��H&&��,�4'",�(�%&�������'���)����*� �� (�+����(0�������, ���("+&����/,��������� ��!"#��$%���&�����'(� ���'�������������)�-��,�4'",��� ��9�%��+&�������!"#��$%���&�� (�3�1� (�6&� �/�,�#,�(���I>?@�� (��'%%���/'&&1����������#,�('�.� �+���7�10��J��KLM��N��OMPPQ��R��STUVOSKWX��Y�����ZZKUL��OP[SV\V��XT]\U��WSKPS��XP��TXX\UZKUL���JN��6�,�5HE�?IG>̂?>G_G9�����'(� ��7�������%��+&���(�4'�&"/1" #��"#���%���&�&�-�&�%�',����7"�����+���" #��#,�(��+,"�,�����B� (" #��"#���%���&����&&��'����.%�&&1�)��#"-� �%,�("��/�,�������%�',����� �������,� �%,"+�0��������%,�("���7"&&�)���++&"�(����/'&=&&�#,�('�.� �,�4'",��� ���� (�%� �)���,� �%,")�(�7"������ � > '��,"%�&�#,�(���'%�����̀+���a��,�̀%,�("�a0�������"#���%���&��'���)��" /�,��(�)�/�,������� (��/������??���#,�(��1��,�"/�� 1��/�������%�',�����,�����)��,���-�(�/,��������,� �%,"+���,�"/�����#,�(��(��"# �.� ��"�����)���&��,�(0�
�bc�



������������	��
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����!������"#����$ !"%&�����#����������������������#���������������������#�����������������������&��'��#�(�����������������������)����������������*������������������&��������������#���������������)����������������������������������*������#���(�����������+��,-./01234�534-/����6��7/02/893:/�6���;/99/0�<03=/��>?@� �ABCD@@� �E��B?F� �A@CAG� �EC��B?B� �HFCHA� �IJ��B?@� �HBCHK� �I��G?F� �H@CHG� �IC��G?B� �FFCFA� �LJ��G?@� �FBCFK� �L��D?F� �F@CFG� �LC��D?B� �KFCKA� �MJ��D?@� �K@CKK� �M��?@� �@CNA� �O��PQRSTU�VWX�YUTS�ZV�[W\]ŶV_�P̀a�RQTb��̀��c�!����d�e��������������� �f��c�g����*����h��c�i���������j�� ���kj��e����� �l��c�i��#�kj��e������mn��c�j�� ���kj��e������o���pp��qr����s��t����uuvu�
��"���������������*�����!���kw����"�����&��xyzz{|y}~�����������z�����z���}����~yzz�z�������������}�}�y�����}��}��������z��������z�y��������z�y�����������������"����������������������������������������������&������������**�����������������������������������������������������������������*������*���&��r���ss��	��
��u�
��	����u��sup�������������������������������*����������������������������������������������&�����������������������#���*��*���������������������(���������������������������&�����u��up
��
�������
���� ��w���������������������¡����������¢�����£��¤¥���������������������������(���������������*������������������������������������������¦¡�������i�������&��������������������#��������"������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+��§��̈������������������¦¡�������i��������������§��!���kw��������������$�����#%��§��i����������������������������������©����ªi«����ªw«���������������*�� �¬�



������������	
��������������	���������
������������
��������������������
	����
�������
����������
�����	
�
�����
	����	�������������� ���!"#�$��%��	�����
�	��
����������&����������
��
&�������������������	����������
�������'(���%����	�
������	������
����&��������
)*�
�%���	����+�
������,�����-��������&����&��.�	������������
��������	��������
���/�0�������	����
���
����
�	�
��
��������
���(�+�������	������
�����&������	�����������12%�+����������34�������
�����
��5��������	
)�������������&������������������6����������(��7��"�89:��;�$��%��	�����������
���<=�	
)��
>���������������������
����������������������������������������'��������
)���������������������������
���(�?���������	�����
������
����������	����������*���������������������������
����
��
��)�����������
��-�
��������	��������<=��@A��	
)�����
�����������(��%��	����������
��
�������������
��������������������
���������������������������������������
�������&)���������
�����������
	�����������������
��-(��B���""C"#�����;!D;����������%�
������E��	�
��12%��������FG+(��%��	�������������	������������%�
����������	�������������������������,��������H��I��J�����KLM���
���
���������
�������������
�N��������%���������
�'�����
	�
�����I��%�&������������%�
��1���������G��O�
�����������������������������������,�
���)��������
�	�����
����(��I��P�N�����)�
����	����������
'�������,���	�Q%�2����)�
�	�����1���������
����(��I��P�%�����)�
����	����������
'�������,���	�%(�2����)�
�	�����1���������
����(��I��+��������2����%������
�	�R�)��	�S�
���
���)�
(��I��-����������FG+���������%�
�����	������������
�������������(�����R�)��	���
�*������
��
��
���)�������������
�	��,���������&)�F��
������G
���)�+���������
����������	������������	��������(�����?�������	����	��������	�������������������������������&���������������(�����P��
���T��
	�
����������	���������������������%�
��+���
��(�������������%�
��
�	�12%�����	�����
�	�������������������	����������(��12%������������	��)�
�����	���U������	��������	�������
������
���
�����
���
�����&������
�)�
.��	�	V����	�����������&���,���	����	��T����	
��������
��12%���
��*�����������	����������
��-�����������	���U����������������
������(�����%��	�����������
���
�<==W�������J
���������
�	�1��������������������������������������
	�
�����
���
)�(��XY� ���!$$�$��1
������	�������������	��������ZP�����	��������������(�� ���!"#���8[��Y����D�$$��S��
��������
���
�����������
��������
�����������+����������34��(��S����������	���������,���	�������	
���)�����)���
��
		���(��Z�����
��&����������������
�����
��P����������
�&��������
���������
������
�����������)������	�������
�������	�������
		����
�	�)����
��(� �\]�



����������	�
��������������
����������������������������������� ����!��"#$%��&�����'������()%*������+,-�+���������.�������'�����������/�0�'�/����*��.�$-.��12��%.�����������������������3�4'�'����������'���5����������.�����.�����1����/�������11����1�-�&1����������6�/�'��&��-�/�1����2��7���8����9���

��:�����;�����<=�����;>��?@A?BC��%��&��������-�������.���'�/�'�����.�������11��!���/�'���.�D���-5���������������������D���������E2F����G2F������.����������.��-��������'�/�'���2��H���
;��������8��I����
J�������8���8���K�����;����L���M��?@�:�����;�����N��������O��������-������PGQF�2��$���!����-���'�1�������'��-�,-�5��'+��'2��RSTUVST�SWX�YZ[�Y\W�]SWX̂XS_\̀�aT̂T�bZTX�_b\�b̂cb�]dedTS_̂f\�ghi�̂W�_b\�̀\ŴZj�]ZbZj_�k\Sj�S_�_b\��]ZW]Td̀ ẐW�Zlm��n��opq�rs��tuvuwxuy�z��{x�o|t��n��}~pxuy���{yxuy�{x�}�����SWX̂XS_\̀�ed̀_�_S�\�S_�T\S̀_m��n�����yuq~xw�rs�op��~w���n�����yuq~xw�rs�tr�~{��tx�q~uw��n�����yuq~xw�rs��{x���n�����yuq~xw�rs�t�~up�u��n�����yuq~xw�rs��ryu~�p��{p��{�u��n������yuq~x��|u{�x���{pq�z��yuq~x�rs���o����v{���wu��o���{~�uy��~s�{��yr�uq����x�x�up�v�wx�x{�u��{qq~x~rp{���ryu�����SWX̂XS_\̀�ed̀_�_S�\�S_�T\S̀_���f\�Zl�_b\�lZTTZaŴc�]Zdj̀\̀�̂W�_bj\\�X̂ll\j\W_�X̂ ]̀̂[T̂W\̀m��op��~w�� �|rpryw�op��~w���� �op��~w��z���r��u�u��yu���|rpryw�op��~w��z�� ����op��~w��z������op��~w��zz���{x�� �|rpryw����u�y{� � ��yu��{�����w��|rpryw�¡urvuxy���� ��yu��{�����w¢��~|t��|rpryw����u�y{��� �����{�����w¢��£��|rpryw��yu��{�����w� �����{�����w¢�£���tx{x~wx~�w� �tx{x~wx~�w¢��~|t���{x��z�z� ��{x��z�z¢��~|t��t�~up�u� �|rpryw�£~r�r��� ��p{xrv������£~r�r��� ��ryupw~�w��|rpryw���uv~wxy�� ����w~�w�������uv~wxy�� ��p~v{�¤��{px�£~r�r��¢��q����~x~���x�yu� �¥rr�r��¤£rx{p���tr�~{��tx�q~uw� �|rpryw�}ry�q�|~wxry�� ����¦�t��|~wxry���¦�t��|~wxry����~|t� �����vuy~�{p�¡r�uypvupx¤�}������¡ur�y{���� ����}ry�q�|~wxry����ryu~�p��{p��{�u� �|rpryw�t�{p~w���� ��t�����t�{p~w���� ��yup�����{pq����|rpryw�t�{p~w���� �¡uyv{p���{pq��������t�{p~w������Zdj̀\̀�XZ�WZ_�S[[Tk�̂l�_S�\W�hS̀ Ù§ŜT� �̈©�



�����������	
��������������������������������������� ��������!"#$��%#&&'()*�+"#,-*&"$-.��",*�-+/""&�-"+01&�2"$3*$45$#6��1,5�1&+"/"&�+"#,-*&"$.��",*�)*,71&�/*1&7/��-#88"$745$#6�0,7*$9*,(",�+"#,-*&"$.��1,5��72"��-+/""&��8-:+/"&"60-7-��-*$9*�7/*�6#051,+*�,**5-�"%�7/*��-7#5*,7-;��<7#5*,7-�1$*�*,+"#$16*5�7"�+",-#&7�1�+"#,-*&"$�2/*,�/*&8�0-�,**5*5;��=&*1-*�)13*��188"0,7)*,7-�0,�7/*�+"#,-*&0,6�+*,7*$�%"$�-*$90+*-;��>��?@�����>���?�A���B��� C� ��DE�� ���A�F��G���?�@������H� I��H�������������������J����K����HA���L���A�H@��>����� H��D�E�� ���M���H� I��H�����������������NO�������A �� �������H� ����������������JJ���P1-7)",7�<+/""&�Q0-7$0+7�0-�8$"#5�7"�"R*$�1�+")8&*7*�1,5�#8'7"'517*�S1$**$�S*,7*$;��<7#5*,7-�1,5��81$*,7-�+1,�%**&�%$**�7"�T$"2-*�7/$"#6/�7/*�*U7*,-09*�+")8#7*$0V*5�+1$**$�0,%"$)1(",�-:-7*)-.�+"&&*6*��+171&"6-.�1,5�6#05*-�0,�+1$**$�5*+0-0",�)130,6;��W/*�S1$**$�S*,7*$�0-�&"+17*5�0,�7/*�X0T$1$:;��L���A�H@��>��� I�?������������������J�J��P1-7)",7�Y06/�<+/""&�/1-��",*�/*1&7/�$"")�105*.�1,5��",*��-+/""&��,#$-*;�Z,�7/*�1T-*,+*�"%�7/*�,#$-*.�[$-7��105�20&&�T*�15)0,0-7*$*5�1-�,*+*--1$:�7/$"#6/�7/*�\5)0,0-7$1(9*�]̂ +*�2/*$*�-71R�/1-�T**,�7$10,*5�7"��$*-8",5�7"�*)*$6*,+0*-;�Z%�7/*�,17#$*�"%�7/*�*)*$6*,+:�0-�-*9*$*�1,5�-71R�0-�#,1T&*�7"�$*1+/�1,:�81$*,7��"$�*)*$6*,+:�+",71+7.�1,�1)T#&1,+*�20&&�T*�-#))",*5.�0%�188$"8$017*;��<7#5*,7-�2/"�T*+")*�0&&�17�-+/""&�1$*�7"�$*8"$7�7"�7/*�/*1&7/�"̂ +*�207/�1�,"7*�%$")�7/*0$�7*1+/*$;��PR"$7-�20&&�T*�)15*�T:�7/*�/*1&7/�$"")�-71R�7"�+",71+7�81$*,7-46#1$501,-�7"�5*7*$)0,*�2/*7/*$�7/*��+/0&5�-/"#&5�T*�-*,7�/")*;�_/*,�-7#5*,7-�T*+")*�0&&.�7/*:�1$*�,"7�7"�&*19*�7/*�-+/""&�6$"#,5-�#,(&�7/*��,#$-*̀-�"̂ +*�/1-�609*,�8*$)0--0",��abc��7/*�-7#5*,7��/1-�T**,�+/*+3*5�"#7�17�7/*�1d*,51,+*�"̂ +*;��K���F�?AH�����AH��>��?@��������� �A�H��H���e���A F��f�����?g��h�N����i,5*$�,"$)1&�+0$+#)-71,+*-�8$*-+$0T*5�"$1&�)*50+1(",�1,5�"$1&�"9*$�7/*�+"#,7*$�)*50+1(",�-/"#&5�T*��50-8*,-*5�T*%"$*�1,54"$�1j*$�-+/""&�/"#$-�#,5*$�-#8*$90-0",�"%�7/*�81$*,7�"$�6#1$501,;�]$1&��)*50+1(",-�1$*�15)0,0-7*$*5�T:�)"#7/�*07/*$�T:�-21&&"20,6�"$�0,/1&0,6;��Z%�1�-7#5*,7�)#-7�$*+*09*�8$*-+$0T*5�"$�,",'8$*-+$0T*5�)*50+1(",�%$")�1,�1#7/"$0V*5�-71R�)*)T*$.�7/*��81$*,7�)#-7�-#T)07�1�2$0d*,�1#7/"$0V1(",�1++")81,0*5�T:�1�2$0d*,�$*k#*-7�%$")�1�&0+*,-*5�/*1&7/��8$"%*--0",1&�8$*-+$0T0,6�207/0,�7/*�-+"8*�"%�/0-�"$�/*$�8$*-+$08(9*�1#7/"$07:;�Z%�7/*�)*50+1(",�20&&�T*��15)0,0-7*$*5�%"$�)"$*�7/1,�[j**,�+",-*+#(9*�51:-.�7/*�/*1&7/�8$"%*--0",1&�)#-7�1&-"�8$"905*�2$0d*,.��+#$$*,7�1,5�#,*U80$*5�0,-7$#+(",-�%"$�7/*�15)0,0-7$1(",�"%�7/*�)*50+1(",;��l����F��>��� I�?����������������NO����P1-7)",7�<+/""&�Q0-7$0+7�+",7$1+7-�207/�<"5*U"�%"$�!""5�<*$90+*;��_*�8$"905*�1�+1%*7*$01�2/*$*�<"5*U"��-*$9*-�"#$�-7#5*,7-�1,5�-71R;��\�&1�S1$7*�)*,#-.�1-�2*&&�1-�%*5*$1&&:�)1,517*5�/"7�&#,+/�1,5�T$*13%1-7��8$"6$1)-�1$*�1910&1T&*;��\550(",1&�+1$7-�1$*�8$"905*5�7"�*U8*507*�7/*�-*$90+*�"%�&#,+/;��\�91$0*7:�"%�)*,#��+/"0+*-�1$*�8$"905*5�",�+1)8#-�%"$�7/*�-7#5*,7̀-�+",9*,0*,+*�1,5�k#0+3�-*$90+*;��P1-7)",7�Y06/�<+/""&�0-�1�+&"-*5�+1)8#-�17�&#,+/;��<7#5*,7-�2/"�/19*�)*7�7/*�$*k#0$*)*,7-�%"$�"8*,��+1)8#-�)1:�&*19*�+1)8#-�%"$�&#,+/;���<7#5*,7-�&*190,6�+1)8#-�1$*�$*k#0$*5�7"�T*�",�()*�%"$�7/*0$�+&1--��%"&&"20,6�&#,+/;��],+*�-7#5*,7-�/19*�&*j�+1)8#-�%"$�&#,+/.�7/*:�1$*�,"7�7/*�$*-8",-0T0&07:�"%�P1-7)",7��Y06/�<+/""&;��],�+1)8#-�7/*$*�0-�1910&1T&*�-*1(,6�T"7/�0,�7/*�+1%*7*$01�1,5�"#7-05*�0,�7/*�+"#$7:1$5�%"$��-7#5*,7-�2/"�T$0,6�7/*0$�&#,+/*-�7"�-+/""&;� �mn�



����������	
������������
�������������������������������������������� ����!��"���#���$%&�'()(*(�+,-.�,//012�3-&&�,.4522506�70�4027�,//�%04&�,7%/&89�&:&672�,6.�;,-895;,806�56�,//�29%00/��<-0=;2�7%,7�>&/06<�70�')*(��'6?�27=.&67�1%0�52�,�4&4>&-�03@�0-�;,-895;,7&2�56@�,6�,7%/&89�7&,4�2;0-7@��,6�,98:57?�569/=.56<�>,6.@�9%05-@�A0=-6,/524�,6.�?&,->00B�,6.C0-�')*�9/=>D2E�52�-&F=5-&.�70�;=-9%,2&�,6��')*�9,-.(���� �"��G�H��������I��#J���K��������$%&�30//0156<�&L7-,M9=--59=/,-�,98:58&2�,-&�,:,5/,>/&�70�27=.&672N��'-7�+/=>� �O(*(P('� �Q,-5,9%5� �)B5//2�R)'��'()(P�+/=>� �O(+('� �QS+%,�+/=>� �)4,2%�+/=>��*,6.� �O(+(+(P('� �T,7=-,/�U&/;&-2� �);0-72�Q&.5956&��*00B�+/=>� �O(O('� �V01&-�03�W0=7%� �)7=.&67�+0=695/��+%&22�+/=>� �U060-�)095&7?� �X)'� �R65Y&.�+/=>��+%05-� �Z67&-6,806,/�P,6<=,<&2� �[&.�\06&� �W&,->00B��]&>,7&� �̂&?�+/=>� �[0>0892��]-,4,�+/=>� �̂601/&.<&�*01/� �)95&69&�+/=>��S6:5-064&67,/�+/=>� �P56B�+-&1� �)9-,79%56<�V027���_̀aab��cd_ef������g��������hE� �$%&�7%-&&�DiE�,66=,/�.,69&2�,-&N��U04&90456<@�);-56<�O/56<@�,6.��V-04(��jE� �'6?�)7=.&67�1%0�152%&2�70�>-56<�,�<=&27�70�,6�SU)�.,69&�4=27�0>7,56�,�.,69&�;,22�7%-0=<%�7%&��SU)�'98:58&2�kl9&(��m=&27�;,22&2�,-&�.=&�7%&�n&.6&2.,?�;-50-�70�7%&�.,69&(�m=&27�;,22&2�,-&��/5457&.�70�06&�<=&27�;&-�27=.&67�,6.�,-&�522=&.�30-�U04&90456<@�);-56<�O/56<�,6.�V-04�06/?(��Z7��52�=;�70�7%&�.529-&806�03�7%&�S,274067�'.456527-,806�70�.&6?�,�.,69&�;,22�,7�,6?�84&(��'//��.,69&�;,22&2�4=27�30//01�7%&�;0/59?�,/-&,.?�56�;/,9&(��iE� �S:&-?�<=&27�1%0�,o&6.2�7%&�.,69&�15//�>&�-&F=5-&.�70�2%01�,6�Z(](�9,-.�70�,6�'.456527-,70-�0-��.&25<6&&(��m=&272�4=27�2%01�,6.�/&,:&�,7�7%&�.00-�,6�Z(](�9,-.@�'()(*(�9,-.@�0-�.-5:&-p2�/59&62&(��q����#���'//�.,69&2�15//�>&<56�,7��rNis�VQ�,6.�&6.�,7�hhNss��VQ(��k69&�,�;&-206�%,2�/&t�,6?�.,69&@�%&C2%&�2%,//��607�>&�-&,.45o&.(��T0�06&�15//�>&�,.45o&.�,t&-�hsNss�VQ(�
�uv�



�����������	
��������	���������������������
���������������������� ���!����"��#�$�������%"������ $&�����'�$����������%���$(��'�) ��*��+ ����� ��(���,���-���$������%�"%(,�����'��)�������� �����'�) ��*��+ ����� ��(��-$,.�� �/�&�'.�������'�$���$0(���(�-���������� �����'�) ���������'"�'�����-����� ��"���'���1���0(�)$���������"%�$��*��23� �+ ���4$��-�����#� ��(��5���'������ $((�������"��,��$�,��6%6�(���7%$(���"%�$���$(���66�'�%���,���'��"���'�-��$����$)$������$�,��6%6�(��0��$%���������$���$(���'�)��.��'$��.��'�(�)���.�������-������$�%����'����8*��9%'� �'-�'�.������6%6�(��� $((��0���"����"���%� ���66�'�%���,����(�(,��0��$%��������6'�)�$��,.��-$'��$(����$�%�.�6'�&��%��$''���.�6'�&��%�����$'��'$�����'�$�6 ,���$(.�-���$(������',� $�"��$6*��:3� �;%6�(��� $((� $&��� ��'�) ������'��"�-�����6��� �$�"����� ��6'���<����� ��"�)'�����%'��� $&���$66(��"����/�� ���� ��6%0(����� ��(�*��+ ���-�$���� $��� ��'�) ������%0=�������(�-��$��������>��$(��6%0(��$�����$�"������-6(�$����/�� �(�)��-$�������'%����$(������'��*��?3� �;%6�(�� $&��� ��'�) �����6�$��$0(,�$���-0(��� ��'�)�&�'�-�����%0=�������� ��'�) ������ ���� ��(�����'�)%($���� ���-�.�6($��.�$�"�-$���'����� ���8�'��������� ��'�) �*��@3� �;%6�(�� $&��� ��'�) ������ ���'����8�'��������'�(�)����$�"���� $&��� ��'��� ��(��'����'�-������$'�$������'�(��'���A%����.��%0=�������'�$���$0(��(�-��$�����%6���� ���-�.�6($��.�$�"��-$���'�����8�'�����)��%� �'�) �*��B3� �;%6�(��� $((� $&��� ��'�) �����0�����%'������ ��'�6�'����.�6$6�'��$�"��C�����$)$������%�'�$���$0(����$'� ���$�"�����%'��.�'���)�����)�� $�����'�) �����6'�&$�,��8�����$�����(��D�'������%�"���'���%"����%��*��E3� �F��6%6�(�� $((�0��"�6'�&�"����$���7%$(��"%�$���$(��66�'�%���,�0,�$��� ��(�"���'����/�� �%��"%���6'���������($/*��G3� �;%6�(��� $((� $&��� ��'�) �����0���'����'�-�%�($/�%(�����'��'��������� ��'�6%'�%������$���"%�$�����/ �(������ ���%���",����� ���� ��(�"���'���*��H3� �+ ��4$��-����#� ��(�5���'����$>'-��� ��6'���������%�"�'�+��(��IJ����� ��K�&�(�L�) �����������6'�&�"���7%��$0(��6$'���6$�����66�'�%�������������'�� �($����$��&����*��M3� �;%6�(�� $&��� ��'�) �����0����&�(&�"������ ��(�$��&�����6'�&�"�"�� $��� �,�-����� ��'�$���$0(���7%$(�N�$��������� ���6����'��)�$��&��,*��2O3� �;%6�(�� $&��� ��'�) �����D��/�� ��'�7%�'�-��������$((���%'���������%",�$�"����D��/����/ $���0$����� ��)'$"��/�((�0��"���'-���"*��223� ��((�6%6�(�� $&��� ��'�) ���������%(��/�� ���$� �'�.���%���(�'�.�$"-�����'$��'�.�$�"��� �'��� ��(��6�'�����(*��2:3� �;%6�(��� $&���� ���'�) ��������(������ ��'��6��'���������%"�����)�&�'�-���.��$�"��$((����%"������ $&���� ���'�) ��������D�$�"� �("��>����%0=�������� ��6'�&����������� ���#P�������%���*� �QR�



������������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����!"��������������#����$�!��%������&�%������������&�������'��()� �*�!�����!%�#&��&������&���������&�%�+����������������������,���-�����.����#����/�!�+��!�������!�#��������0��+!����"��0�!!�������1�&�����������%����$������!���!����!����������������#����$!��������$&/�����/-���2��3)� �45���������!����!%��������$�����/�������!!��!�����2��6���0���������&����������!�&#���!�����������!����!����������!%2��*��������7�!��%�839(7�:;<8)��8)� �=���+������"������$�%��!!������!��&!��2��9)� ��,#������#�������������������������#��>&!��������+����&��!�$�!�����!�����2��<)� �4��������������������+�!!������������������������&��/��������%���������&����2��?)� �@��#������������������������������,���������!�A�����#!���2��B)� �C�!!�+�����$!������#�����&����������0��������������������!��&!��2��D)� �����/�%������!����������!����E�+������F&�����������%������!�#��#���%���������%������!����/���%2��G)� �C�!!�+������������$!����F&�������������!����E����$���2��(H)� �6��#!%�+����+��5��������!��&!���������������#�����������%��&��I46�8G3A9HHA33<�����@6I��3D42?HH2H(H2��(()� � &$��������������$!��������/�����/������#&�����������#�����$%������!����E��������!�/������������!��&!��2�

�JK�



����������������	
������������������������������������������������� !"#�$%�&�'(%�)��*+��,��"��)-*,�!)��'���%�*"'�)(,)-*".*-�'�,/0��12� �3*)-4�"-�5&������6!)-%!&-�7��!&/�8199��)-*-�)�-�*-�:5-('�"-)��*%���;$�&-�'�-��*<�"'�*���*))!#"�'��&�*))�)��+�%/�'*/=>�7��*)��%���%�-���6!)-%!&-�7��!&/��8199��?�*"'�7%�&�'(%���81997����%�!"��%4*.�"��"��3;&()�'�*"'�@"�;&()�'�A,)�"&�)=��BAC�8D9EFG1EG1H�)-*-�)�-���'�I"!.�"����*"�*,)�"&�=��92� ������J�+!)�'�C�'�����B*)�!"#-�"�K�=��LMNOPQQOQRQ��E�J�S(!%�)��$($!�)�-��&�4$�/� !-��%(��)���)-*,�!)��'���%�-���#�+�%"4�"-����)&����)?�-��$(%)(��%�S(!%�'�&�(%)�)�*"'�-��)(,4!-�-��-����*(-��%!-/����-�*&��%)?�)(,T�&-�-��)(&��'!)&!$�!"*%/�*&.�"�*)�)&������U&!*�)�)�*���'�-�%4!"�=��V���������W��X��12� �YZZ[\]̂]_�̀[a�Ybcd]Zdce��5-('�"-)�*%��%�S(!%�'�-���&��&f�!"�*"'��(-�*-�-���A<�"'*"&��gU&��� ��"���*+!"#�*"'h�%�%�-(%"!"#�-��&*4$()=��B��"�*�)-('�"-��!)�*,)�"-?�-���$*%�"-h#(*%'!*"��)��(�'�$��"�0�iiiEFjH9��%�)�"'�*�"�-��-��+�%!�/�-���&*()�����-���*,)�"&�=�B��"��$*%�"-h#(*%'!*"�&�44("!&*.�"��*)�"�-�,��"�%�&�!+�'?��%�4*'�?� ��-��%�,/�"�-���%�,/�$��"�?��-���*,)�"&��)�*���,��'�&�*%�'�-%(*"&/�(".��+�%!I�'�,/�-���$*%�"-)��%�#(*%'!*")=��k��-��%��!)�"���+�%!I&*.�"�,/�-���$*%�"-��%�#(*%'!*"� !-�!"�-�%���)&�����'*/)?�-���*,)�"&�� !���,��'�&�*%�'��-%(*"-�*"'�-��"�-���)-('�"-� !���%�&�!+��'!)&!$�!"*%/�*&.�"=�A"/�)-('�"-� ���$%�)�"-)��*�)����+!'�"&��!"��%'�%�-�� %�"#�/�S(*�!�/���%�*"��;&()�'�*,)�"&��)�*���,��'�&�*%�'�-%(*"-�*"'�4*/��%�&�!+��'!)&!$�!"*%/�*&.�"=��92� �lmcZmnom]m]_�pa\q]Zmdce���%(*"&!�)� !����*+��)&������'!)&!$�!"��*))!#"�'=���!)�'!)&!$�!"�� !���()(*��/��'�$�"'��"�-����%�S(�"&/����-%(*"&!�)�*"'�$%�+!�()�*<�"'*"&��$*<�%")=��82� �rqsdt\n�u[as��0�5-('�"-)� !���,��#!+�"�*�%�*)�"*,�����$$�%-("!-/�-��4*f��($� �%f�*v�%�*"��*,)�"&�=��F2� �wadqaaq]_dx�Ybcd]Zdc�y�zYbcd]Zdc�[̀�{|d�z}~�[a��[ad�cZ�[[o�xq�c~��e��7%!�%�*%%*"#�4�"-)���%��-��)��*,)�"&�)�4*/�%�S(!%��*�$*%�"-h#(*%'!*"�-�*&��%�&�"��%�"&�=�A�$*%�"-?�#(*%'!*"��%�7� �%�����A<�%"�/�4()-�,��$%�)�"-� !-��!'�".I&*.�"�-��)(,4!-�*�%�S(�)-���%�*�$%�*%%*"#�'�*,)�"&�=��5(&��$%�*%%*"#�'�%�S(�)-)�4()-�,��)(,4!<�'�-��-���C�(")��!"#��U&��-���)*4��"(4,�%����'*/)��!"�*'+*"&��*)�-���"(4,�%����%�S(�)-�'�'*/)�-��,��*,)�"-?� !-��*�4!"!4(4����I+���H2�'*/)��*'+*"&��"�.&�=�5-('�"-)� !���-*f��-���$%��*%%*"#�'�*,)�"&����%4)�-��-�*&��%)���%�-��!%��&�")!'�%*.�"�*"'�)!#"*-(%�)=��7%�*%%*"#�'�*,)�"&�)�!"��;&�))����- �"-/��9G2�)&�����'*/)� !����%�)(�-�!"� !-�'%* *���%�4�)&�����*"'�%�E�"%����'�($�"�%�-(%"=��3*)-4�"-�5&�����6!)-%!&-�"�+�%��%�&�44�"')�*�)-('�"-�4!))!"#�)&�����*)�*�$%�*%%*"#�'�*,)�"&���*)�-���)*4��"�#*.+��*��&-�-���)-('�"-���*%"!"#�*"'�$�-�".*��"�#*.+��!4$*&-�-��-���)-('�"-�)�#%*'��*)�'��*���*,)�"&�)=�������)&������"&�(%*#�)�$*%�"-)�*"'�)-('�"-)�-��$�*"�*&&�%'!"#�/�*"'�4!"!4!���*���*,)�"&�)=��/��(.�!�!"#�-���7%��A%%*"#�'�A,)�"&��$%�+!)!�")����3�5?�-���)-('�"-�*"'�$*%�"-�*&f"� ��'#��*"'�� !���(��/�*&&�$-�-���%�*�!-/����$�-�".*����)-���*%"!"#�*"'�*�$�))!,���'�&�!"��!"�-���)-('�"-�)�#%*'�=��H2� ��smn�lq�e��3*)-4�"-��!#��5&�����'��)�"�-�$�%4!-�*��:)&�����)f!$�'*/>�"�%�:)�"!�%�)f!$�'*/>=��5-('�"-)�!"+��+�'�!"�)(&��*&.+!.�)� !���,��%�#*%'�'�*)�-%(*"-��%�4�-���)&�����*"'�)(,T�&-�-���'!)&!$�!"�=� ����



���� ������	�
��	�����
����������������������������������� ����!�����"� �"�#����"������������������������$���%�&�����"���������������#���'�(�%��������)����*��"%��&�%���%����� ��������%����%�%���������������"��&��'�+��������,%&"���"����*%������#%��������#%�%���)���������������%�&���"����������!�����"�����������"��������!������#����'�����������%��-���%�&������.��+/0.������1%����2��������� ���������+,�����%�&��"����"������ .������"� �������"��1�%������"��3$��������/4��.������%������%���� �����.������"��������������"���%���� �����������"� ����%#�����%�&��"������%�&�!���������%�&�����������"� �"�#�����+,�'��5�� �67�8�
���9:;<=>:?�@A=�=BC=D:=<�:E�F=�@:�DG@??�E>�HI=��@><�JKGG�L@D=�<K?DKCGK>=�A@>MK>M�LAEI��G;>DN�<=:=>HE>�:E�K>�?DNEEG�?;?C=>?KE>�LEA�F=K>M�:@A<O�:E�DG@??��P�

�QR�



����������	�
���	������������������������������������� �!� �����"#�$%&'())���*�+#��&,�-.))/� �01� ����2���3�����4�5�� ������63��� 13��� ��� *������1*����2��*12��������1 ������!����*�� *� 37��2���3-��8�����3���� �01� ����1*���������2�4937������������ 13�����*�� ������*��� �2�������1��� ��7�����1�9��*���*��:9�3���1*����-��;<=>?@A>��B@CDEDF=�<AG�BH@EFGIHF=��� �������*�9��*�*��� �2��*��2�93������1�*�3�����6���*������������������������-��8������1�*�3����� �!� ������:��./�3�J�3���!�K���J�� �L��3�M����������*4����� �MJ�37��������*�*��2�93����� �������! �4�#3��� ��4�N:231���������N:913�����-��O!�4��6���J�� �2��M�1��P�����1*����4�7�6�� �4�J�*�! �4������2���3��������*��*12�M���3��� J�2������ �1��������1�9�������� ��:913�����9 �2���-��Q���!��4��6���J�� �4�7�6��2����*� �*��J� �413M93���7�� ��*�9��*�����������4��2��*12����*�2��� ��13�������8� ����"�����4����NJ�31�M��-�+��M�1M������� �01� �*������*�4������*�2����� ��13��! �4���1*����2��*12�-���1*�����������*��MR�*�*���6�3�M���� ����16S�2������**�M���3�*��2�93��� 7� �J����9 �2�*1 ���2���������������21  ������������*�!�*� �3�3��-��"�2�97��!�����T��� �2�U��21  ����*��2�93����9 �2�*1 �����231*��������1*���U��*1��9 �2���� ����������99��3������������*�*��2�93�������*��� �61��*�����33���1*�������*����V��������6����������!������2���3�7�� ���*�����������1*�������������7� ������ -�8���4���� �2������*�W�X2��3Y�J� �����2���6��!�1�*��������T��� �2�U�����6�����1�*� ��;<=>?@A>�B@CDEDF=�<AG�BH@EFGIHF=��Z[��\]̂_̀ab]̀�cdef\g�

�hh�



����������	
�	���	������
�
������������������
�������� ������������������ !������"�#�!���$ ��% �#!��#&��'()*+,(-�./(0�12+,*1,3+�1,*456�7+018/56��/--)+-�(01(�16+�/9:13;,<�(0+/6�:1(0�(5�<61*)1;5,�91=�7+�6+>)/6+*�(5�12+,*�1�35,?+6+,3+�./(0��1,�1*9/,/-(61(56�1,*�91=�7+�:@13+*�5,�1�35,(613(�71-+*�5,�A1-0/,<(5,�'(1(+�B6)1,3=�1,*��C/-3/:@/,+�D1.-E�B0+-+�35,(613(-�5)(@/,+�-()*+,(�+F:+3(1;5,-�?56�12+,*1,3+�1,*�3@1--6559��7+018/56�1-�.+@@�1-�.01(�35,-+>)+,3+-�91=�6+-)@(�/?�,5(�?5@@5.+*E�G+6(1/,�-)::56(�91=�7+��6+>)/6+*H�-)30�1-�@),30;9+�131*+9/3�-)::56(�56�.++I@=�9++;,<-�./(0�1�-(1J�9+97+6E��K�� �%L�MM!  N���M��OL���&��P,�1@@�/,-(1,3+-H�(0+�3@1--6559��(+130+6�-05)@*�/,/;1@@=�01,*@+�-()*+,(��9/-7+018/56E�'()*+,(-Q�35,*)3(�/,�(0+�3@1--6559�./@@�7+�-)30�(01(�/(�./@@�,5(�*/-6):(�(0+��(+130/,<4@+16,/,<�:653+--E��R�� �% NOS#�!�T�#U !V�����O#�WL��XM��Y L��Z&��[1-(95,(�'3055@��C/-(6/3(�5J+6-�1�816/+(=�5?�+@+3(65,/3��6+-5)63+-�(5�-()*+,(-�1,*�-(1JE�[@+3(65,/3�9+*/1�\-)30�1-�(0+�P,(+6,+(]�/-�1�6/30�6+-5)63+�(0+��81@)+�5?�.0/30�58+6-01*5.-�(0+�:5--/7/@/(=�5?�),*+-/617@+�91(+6/1@E�̂-�1�35,*/;5,�5?�+130�)-+6_-��6/<0(�(5�)-+�1,=�(=:+�5?�359:)(+6�6+@1(+*�+@+3(65,/3�9+*/1�\/,3@)*/,<�P,(+6,+(]�1@@�-()*+,(-�9)-(��1<6++�(5�)-+�(0+�-=-(+9�/,�1,�133+:(17@+�91,,+6H�1-�-(1(+*�/,��̀516*�a5@/3=�bcbb��E��d�� �% ��S�#��#�e��  L�eO �M !���f���#M&��̂2+,*1,3+�1(��-3055@g-:5,-56+*�+8+,(-H�.0+(0+6�5,�56��5Jg319:)-H�/-�35,*/;5,+*�5,�(0+�-()*+,(Q-�57-+681,3+�(5�1@@�-(1,*16*�-3055@�:5@/3/+-E��̂,=��8/5@1;5,�5?�(0+-+�:5@/3/+-�./@@�6+-)@(�/,�(0+�-()*+,(�7+/,<�1-I+*�(5�@+18+�(0+�+8+,(E��G/63)9-(1,3+-�91=�.1661,(�?)6(0+6�*/-3/:@/,16=�13;5,E��h�� �i!�MM�% ����jYL��M��!�k�!�# ��̀516*�a5@/3=�lbbm��]n��o,*+6-(1,*/,<��-53/1@@=�1::65:6/1(+�*6+--�/-��?),*19+,(1@�(5�1�-()*+,(_-�?)()6+�+9:@5=9+,(�-)33+--E�P,�-)::56(�5?�(0+�(61,-/;5,�?659�30/@*�(5��=5),<�1*)@(H�1,*�/,�6+35<,/;5,�5?�<65./,<�<1,<�6+@1(+*�7+018/56-�1,*�*6+--H�[1-(95,(�p/<0��'3055@�./@@�7+�?5@@5./,<�1q6+�6+@1(+*�6)@+-�1-�-(1(+*�/,�̀516*�a5@/3=�1,*��a653+*)6+�lbbma��E��r�� �i!Ss�i�#��$ ��i s&��̂�@1.�+,?563+9+,(�*5<�91=�7+�765)<0(��5,(5�(0+�319:)-�1,*�/,(5�(0+��-3055@�:+6/5*/31@@=�?56�(0+�:)6:5-+�5?�*+(+3;,<�*6)<-E�'()*+,(-�./@@�,5(�7+�(5@*�5?�(0+�;9+�5?��(0+�/,-:+3;5,E����a@+1-+�6+?+6�(5�̀516*�a653+*)6+�lbmtaE��u�� �fL��#! ����������M&��\/E+EH�G+@@�a05,+-H�0+1*:05,+-��+(3E]��'()*+,(-�./@@�7+�+F:+3(+*�(5�?5@@5.��'3055@�̀516*��a653+*)6+�lbmva��/,�6+<16*-�(5�3+@@�:05,+-E��B+130+6-�./@@�35,w-31(+�1@@�+@+3(65,/3��*+8/3+-�(01(�16+�7+/,<�)-+*�./(05)(�1::6581@�*)6/,<�3@1--�;9+�1,*�91=�6+>)/6+�:16+,(-�(5�359+��(5�(0+�-3055@�(5�:/3I�(0+-+�/(+9-�):E��f�!WS�Mx����O� ��M��!��� #�# �W��U !���S!��s��L�MM��U�#� S#�O�!N�MM� ��s!��#���WZ�#���#�����!y�z��Z�M� SL������!�W��U !��U������#�����!��sS�M#��MO��V�!�� !��L�MM�N�NW�!��M����!�MM��s�#����L�MMy��P(�/-�6+3599+,*+*�(01(�(0+-+�+@+3(65,/3��*+8/3+-�,5(�7+�765)<0(�(5�-3055@E��[1-(95,(�p/<0�'3055@�/-�,5(�6+-:5,-/7@+�?56�@5-(�56�-(5@+,��/(+9-E�a@+1-+�6+?+6�(5��̀516*�a5@/3=�lbmv��E��{�� �|��M�����}��M&��G@1--�?++-�16+�1--+--+*�/,�13356*1,3+��./(0�(0+�̀516*�1::658+*�?++�-30+*)@+�1(��(0+�7+</,,/,<�5?�+130��-+9+-(+6E��~/,+-�16+�1--+--+*��(5�-()*+,(-�1-�1�6+-)@(�5?�),:1/*�?++-�56�(5��6+358+6�(0+�35-(�5?�*191<+*�56�@5-(�-3055@�*/-(6/3(�:65:+6(=E�'()*+,(-�6+>)+-;,<�:1=9+,(� ����



������������	�	
�������������
������������	������������	��������	���������������������������
������������������� ���� �!�"#$%�&'�( )�% *+��,	���������		�		��������
�	-����
���	-������
������.������������/���	��	�����
���������01�� �23&'45 637 #�86"79�&'+��:������;���������������	������	��<������������������=���������������������/����	��
�������>��?�������������	�����@������?��
�������-��	����������		����������	�����������A���?������������������
����	��������
���B�	���������������	��������
���B�	�����C	��D��
�������B��		�E����:���	��<���������������	���F�	
��������������FGE�HIG�JKK�LLM���/�	��	�
��	����������
�������������������������������		��	���00�� �N3* ��!"�&7 �*+��O�	����������	�����
����		�		�����<��	������	�����������?������	�
���������	���0P�� �N3Q�R&S"�% T &7�U' &%� *+��O�?���<������������
�����	�����������/��?���	�����������
��	�
�������
����@���	�����������	����<����
�������/��?��D��	����<������V�����D�����WHHJ���0X�� �N"%Y ��3**�'&T &7*+���������	�?�������	���	����<�����
������������������		��<��
�����		���������>��	���O��>��	�	
�������>������>���������
���	������	�	
�������������/����
���������������Z�/�����/��/�����	��������������������>�����[
��	�
���?�����������	���	����<��������	��	�����<�����������>��-������<�����
�/���/�����������������?
��	�����������������-��
��	�
������������<�
�����������������/�����������	������������[
����>��	�������	��������
���B�	��������������������	�
����@���	���������
�����
�����������	�����	���������>��	�\]EF�HIG�JKK�HHK̂���O��>��	������	�����	����
���?
����
�����	����	������	�	��������<����������������������	���0_�� �̀"&3a &#3&% b$& c%$* #�3d* &% *+������Ge���������D����-���������HK��<��
�	�
������>���0f�� �gh &�83Th$*+��i����E����	��	������/������
����	����������
����
���		��������		�	-��/��������	���������	������-�����������������������e���������i���������	�?����������/������<���jK�
��������	������	������
��
�<?����������<�	���	���������G���
���	������	�?�����������������	���
����
�k�������������	��
��>	��
����
�����
���������0l�� �!3�Y�&'�N"7+��G�	����
��<���������/�
�������������������	���������	������	�	�������?
����������������		����	�
������	�/���������G�m�����������	�����	��������	�����������n���	�����<���
��	�
������>����������������	����������
���<����	��m�������	����
�?
�����������������		�����	�
���/��������	�	����������
�	�
������>���0o�� �!3�Y�&'�!��)�6 ' *+��[
��	����������>��������	���������	���������	��	��/�����	�	���������	����������������>����
�������-�/�	����-����	��;�����	-�������������������>�����
��	�������	�������<��
������>��������p��������	�����������>�����������������>����	���	�������G���	����������>��������	�
���������	������������
���q��������?�����������?��
������>������>����������������?�����?���?��
��������������
���?���r	��n���	����0s�� �! �*"&36�!�"h �7t+����	���������
���
������
���������	�������	�����������D��	-�pDW������	-������
���	-����������	��	��<��������������
�����<�������������	���������/�������	�
�����R3*7T"&7�u�'9�v%9""6��*�&"7�� *h"&*�d6 �S"��79 �6"**�"��79 w�"S�h �*"&36�h�"h �7t�3&#�%3&&"7���&) *x'37 �366�� h"�7*�"S�79 wy��z9�*��&%6$# *�) 9�%6 *�h3�Y #��&�3&#�3�"$&#�%3Th$*y� �{|�



����� �����	
��	�����������
�������������������� !�"�����#�� ��"$�����%&'"#���#%��������!�"��&#���(�����!���)#��#&�#�(���*���!�"$+"�%%,-�.$��$�/�����$��!!�#!�$�����$�!%�,��#&��0�")#�������#���%%#1��*��23�� �4
5����6��������7� �8(����$9���$��$��&�%%�"(��/��#&��(��:�������!�!$%�*��;�!$%��<����#:�,��(����$9���!�#<!�%,������1$%%$�/%,*��"(##%�:�����$9����(�9���(�����(#�$�,��#��$�"$!%$������������&#��<$�"#���"�����%������#��"(##%�=$���$"��>�%���?@AB�CDE'FGG*ECG7*��:7� ����������1(#��#��#��#:�,��(����%���#&�/##��:���"#���"��<�,�%#����(�$��!�$9$%�/���#��$�����#�����&�#<��"(##%�#���(��:�����������<$����:,��(��:�$%�$�/�!�$�"$!�%�#��($�����$/���*��"7� ��������������� !�"�����#��:$���:,��%%��"(##%���%�������:�(�9$#��� !�"��)#���1($%����������(����!��9$�$#��#&��(��:�����$9��*��2��� �4�HI�	����
���J�	K��L���M���<#���N$/(��"(##%������9�����(���$/(���#��������9�$%%��"���O�$!<���������%%�)<����#���!!#����(����&��,�#&�#������0��������������1$�($���(��:�$%�$�/�1($"(�$�"%������(���/�#���������#���$�/��(���"(##%�:�$%�$�/�*��22�� �P�
5�	
�����L�
���������
�5������Q�H��L5�H��H�R����8�"(�$"�%�����")#��#&��%"#(#%�����#�(�������/��$����!!#�����:,��($��!#%$",*�S����(�%,T���-��!�"$+"���9$"��-�����!��")"���1$%%�:�������1(�����(����$������#��:%�����!$"$#�*��2U�� �V	�	L�H���	
�����"(##%��/��9$�$�#��������#���%%#1�������M���<#���N$/(��"(##%����$�/��(����/�%�����"(##%���,*��M "�!)#����%%#1���:,��(��!�$�"$!�%�$����9��"��#���������$"����:��$�*��S�:$��W$�&�����������#���#�:��:�#�/(���#��"(##%����$�/��(����,*��XYZ[\]̂ZX�_�̀ab�cd̂[bXX��efg�hijfgklmhfi�gnolgphio�qrlssgffk�klilonknimt�qfggnqmhun�lqmhfist�fg�qfisnvwniqnst�xrnlsn��snn��yflgp�zfrhq{�|}~���t�lip��zgfqnpwgn�|}~�z��

����



  
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Donation from Grant Elementary PTO 
 
DATE:  June 12, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
Board Policy 6114 states that “Any gift or donation to the District or to an individual 
school or department of money, materials, or equipment having a value of $1,500 or 
greater shall be subject to Board approval.” 
 
Grant Elementary School Principal Kirsten Mittelstaedt has let us know that Grant 
Elementary PTO has a second donation of $3,487. These funds would be used to 
replace their sound system including speakers, speaker stands, cables, sound mixer, 
and microphones.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒None          ☒Donation          
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends that the Board accept this second donation from Grant 
School PTO. 

 
 



  
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Donation from Greater Wenatchee Sunrise Lions Club 
 
DATE:  June 12, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
Board Policy 6114 states that “Any gift or donation to the District or to an individual 
school or department of money, materials, or equipment having a value of $1,500 or 
greater shall be subject to Board approval.” 
 
Eastmont High School staff have let us know that the Greater Wenatchee Sunrise 
Lions Club would like to donate $2,000 to Eastmont FFA. These funds would be used 
by the club to fund meetings, banquets, awards, etc.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒None          ☒Donation          
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends that the Board accept this donation from Greater 
Wenatchee Sunrise Lions Club. 

 
 



 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Eastmont Career and Technical Education (CTE) District Wide Action Plan  
 
DATE:  June 12, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
Attached is a revised Eastmont Career and Technical Education (CTE) District Wide 
Action Plan for your review.  This Action Plan requires Board approval. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒CTE District Wide Plan          ☒OSPI Requirements          

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of the revised Eastmont Career and Technical 
Education (CTE) District Wide Action Plan. 
 







 

 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Caryn Metsker, Executive Director of Financial Services 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Student Enrollment Report 
 
DATE:  June 12, 2023 

 

 

Official Count Day: Thursday, June 1, 2023. 
 
Total student head count reported, including our Alternative Learning program, is 
5,844. This is an increase of 135 from the headcount in June 2022, which was 5,709. 
 
Total student Full Time Enrollment (FTE) reported is 5,730.71. This is an increase of 
94.61 FTE from the overall budgeted FTE of 5,636.10 for the 2022-2023 school year. 
 

• K-12 Student enrollment is 59.20 more than expected 

• ALE Program enrollment is 36.15 more than expected 
 

 
The following chart compares budgeted to actual FTE by building: 

 

 
 

 



The following chart reflects month to month FTE enrollment trends over the past five school 
years, plus the current 2022-2023 school year: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A comparison of other reported program enrollment as of June 2023 to 2021-2022 is below: 
 
 

Program Name 
2022-2023 

Budget 
2022-2023  

Average 
2021-2022  

Average 

Running Start (Head Count) 132.00 155.00 142.00 

Special Education (Age K-21 Head Count) 720.00 784.00 658.00 

Transitional Bilingual (Head Count) 1,100.00 1,146.00 1,031.00 

Exited Transitional Bilingual (Head Count) 110.00 122.00 257.00 

Career/Technical Education-Gr 7-8 (FTE) 126.00 125.45 132.53 

Career/Technical Education-Gr 9-12 (FTE) 328.00 351.38 332.41 

 



Eastmont School District
2022 - 2023 K-12 Monthly Enrollment

Grade Level
Budget
AAFTE September October November December January February March April May June

Annual
Average

AAFTE
Budget to Actual

Variance
Prior Year

AAFTE
AAFTE Variance
from Prior Year

Total K-12 in
Building FTE 5,485.90 5,555.64 5,574.74 5,559.35 5,535.75 5,534.72 5,529.71 5,532.99 5,541.12 5,544.25 5,542.75 5,545.10 59.20 5,440.10 105.00 (36.32)

Total FTE
Enrollment 5,636.10 5,730.13 5,758.53 5,746.72 5,722.50 5,729.29 5,728.21 5,726.40 5,721.87 5,721.80 5,721.68 5,730.71 94.61 5,657.48 73.23

AAFTE
Gain/(Loss) on
Grade Roll-Up

TK 0.00 51.00 51.00 51.00 51.00 51.00 51.00 51.00 51.00 51.00 51.00 51.00 51.00 0.00 51.00
K 395.00 383.24 390.24 389.67 389.08 389.08 390.99 391.49 393.49 394.77 397.77 390.98 (4.02) 375.13 15.85
1 371.80 396.00 396.18 398.36 396.36 395.36 400.36 401.51 403.51 404.60 403.60 399.58 27.78 362.51 37.07 24.45
2 363.20 392.09 394.09 392.00 389.00 388.14 389.14 391.14 393.14 391.14 393.14 391.30 28.10 428.27 (36.97) 28.79
3 425.50 437.00 437.00 441.00 440.00 440.00 444.00 448.00 451.00 452.00 453.00 444.30 18.80 399.60 44.70 16.03
4 401.80 402.00 409.00 409.00 407.00 409.00 413.00 412.00 415.00 413.00 414.00 410.30 8.50 395.53 14.77 10.70
5 397.10 409.09 409.61 409.52 409.00 408.00 409.00 410.00 413.00 417.00 417.00 411.12 14.02 466.42 (55.30) 15.59
6 463.50 468.61 470.61 469.00 467.00 467.00 467.00 469.18 467.00 469.00 469.00 468.34 4.84 438.40 29.94 1.92
7 440.80 451.45 455.50 457.50 457.79 456.91 458.28 458.28 454.14 456.05 457.05 456.30 15.49 457.99 (1.70) 17.90
8 458.90 458.54 458.08 451.75 452.21 455.09 456.03 451.71 451.02 454.51 454.13 454.31 (4.59) 531.67 (77.36) (3.68)
9 532.00 542.54 542.15 537.02 529.02 528.86 521.01 518.11 521.34 522.90 521.61 528.46 (3.54) 459.46 69.00 (3.21)

10 460.80 459.94 458.49 455.49 455.68 455.77 451.30 450.13 454.24 450.58 445.67 453.73 (7.07) 489.70 (35.97) (5.73)
11 456.70 383.52 383.33 380.14 380.72 378.82 369.19 371.33 370.24 368.79 368.73 375.48 (81.22) 334.76 40.72 (114.22)
12 318.80 320.62 319.46 317.90 311.89 311.69 309.41 309.11 303.00 298.91 297.05 309.90 (8.90) 300.66 9.24 (24.86)

56.70 41.01 43.01 42.64 46.00 46.00 45.08 47.06 43.48 46.48 46.86 44.76 (11.94) 65.58 (20.82)
93.50 133.48 140.78 144.73 140.75 148.57 153.42 146.35 137.27 131.07 132.07 140.85 47.35 151.80 (10.95)

(8.45)
(0.12)

Eastmont Academy
EHS Opportunities

FTE Change from September to Current Month
Net Change from Previous Month



 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Field Trip Request – EHS Girls Basketball 
 
DATE:  June 12, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
As you know, field trips which take students overnight and/or out-of-state, must have 
Board approval. 
 
EHS Girls Basketball Coach Joel Barnes is seeking the Board’s permission to take 12 
student athletes to participate in the Summer Slam Tournament overnight in Liberty 
Lake, WA.  The tournament takes place July 7-9, 2023.  There will be two chaperones in 
attendance.  There is no cost to the students to attend.  All expenses are covered by 
athletics and ASB funds.  A copy of the request is enclosed. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Field Trip Request ☒ASB and Athletics 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of this overnight field trip request for EHS Girls 
Basketball. 



















Summer Slam Itinerary
Spokane Washington

July 7-9th, 2023
July 7th

● 7:00 AM
○ Leave Eastmont High School in District Vans.

● 10:00 AM
○ Arrive at the HUB Sports Center

● Games
○ Games are played from 10:00 AM-9:00 PM
○ We will play 2 Games (Round Robin).

● Dinner in Spokane Valley and then back to the hotels.
○ We will use this weekend to help build on team bonding and strategies of

leadership.

July 8th
● 8:30 AM

○ Eat breakfast provided by the Hotel.
● 9:30 AM

○ Drive to the HUB Sports Center
● Games

○ Games are played from 10:00 AM-9:00 PM
○ We will play 2 Games (Round Robin).

● Dinner in Spokane Valley and then back to the hotels.
○ We will use this weekend to help build on team bonding and strategies of

leadership. Play different games that create a team!

July 9th
● 8:30 AM

○ Eat breakfast provided by the Hotel.
● 9:30 AM

○ Drive to the HUB Sports Center
● Games

○ Games are played from 10:00 AM-5:00 PM
○ We will play one game and then go into the bracket from there.

● 5:00 PM
○ Stop for food in the Spokane Valley and drive home. Be home by 9:00 PM. We

could possibly be home sooner, depending on how we do in bracket play.



                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Page 1 of 2 

 
 

 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Becky Berg 
 
SUBJECT: Immediate Facilities Needs 
 
DATE:  June 12, 2023 
 

CATEGORY 
☐Informational         ☐Discussion Only      ☒Discussion & Action      ☐Action 
 

 
 
After a careful assessment and prioritization of our needs, along with our available 
funding sources, we plan to complete the following projects, using a variety of funding 
sources as stated.  The detailed list is attached.   
 
BOND 
If the Board should decide to run a Bond Issue again, perhaps in February of 2024, it 
likely would be for the three facilities in most need:  Cascade, Lee and Kenroy.  Rock 
Island would also be in need of a roof replacement and an HVAC control upgrade.  The 
bond could also be used for remaining security vestibules and/or measures.   
 
MAINTENANCE  
Our traditional maintenance budget will be enhanced to cover more routine costs such 
as carpeting, paint and concrete sealant as needed. 
 
ESSR  
We have researched and been given written approval of using some of the one time 
ESSR recovery funds for technology upgrades that will help us with future contact 
tracing and emergency contacts.  The $2.4 million required is an appropriate use of 
these funds.  
 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
As far as athletics, we are using athletic capital funds leftover from COVID closures to 
resurface the track.  Our lights are beyond end of life, and should be replaced at the 
same time that the track will be resurfaced.  The EJHS gym floor is nearly unusable,  



                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
with a sizable buckle in it.  In replacing the floor, we first need to figure out where the 
water that damaged the floor is coming from.  Our current estimates of replacement and 
moisture mitigation is $337K.  Also included are two short-term repair projects for tennis 
courts.   
 
These athletic improvements total $1,024,435 and can come from one of two places in 
the budget.  First, the Board could temporarily suspend Board Policy No. 6022 Minimum 
Fund Balance requiring a 1% reserve in our Capital Project Fund.  Another option would 
be to move $1m from our General Fund reserves to our Capital Project Fund.  We will 
likely end the year with just under 12% unassigned minimum fund balance, so a transfer 
to Capital Projects would leave an 11% unassigned minimum fund balance remaining, 
which is compliant with Policy 6022.  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The administration recommends acceptance of this facilities and funding plan, with work 
to commence immediately.  

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1iTJ6dlkTyTECq7YXUqAr25oEGPg5hh0P/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1iTJ6dlkTyTECq7YXUqAr25oEGPg5hh0P/view?usp=drive_link


������������	
����� ����
�
�������	����	
����� ����������������������	��	
����������� �����!"#$%��� &' ������ �����!"#$%��� &' ������ �����!"#$%��� &'(�)# "��*#+,���-#���!� ./�" .)��0123222 4!��."+���/�������5�6"7++#�' 031523222 (�)# "��8 �#�!9�#�97��:)+#���-;66� %�$� 11<32=1> �!���&��.�+.?. !�)+.� ��+!:@ �!��! !"�8 "�#��/ A23222 ( %�+�:>7+!���0���B� . %%���+! #�"+��� <03122 (�)# "��-C;6�9/��8#++. <113222D)))#/�"+!".������ # !���+).���.,���� %�$� <23222 E �#�!9���"$.��/�" ��. .�)# "���!�� 02F3222 @���9 ����+���$.���!�-C;6�9/��$G�8#++. H<3222D%%�" .)���6C;6�G !%:"7+�..++�� 023222 (�)# "��G$��" ��. ��/���� 5=13222 (�) �.�-C;6���!!���"+$.�� H13F52(�)# "�?. !�)+.� ��+!:@ �!��! !"��+88�"�" .)�� 023222 (�) �.���7+.����.�'�-;6���!!��"+$.�� 123222(+"I�4�# !%�.++8�.�)# "���!��JK+!% 1223222 D%%���+! #�-!%�+8�#�8��" ��. ��*L>6�9. !�M' A223222 (��$.8 "��-;6�?. "I�J� AH13222(+"I�4�# !%�;ND*�"+!�.+#$)9. %��J�K+!% <223222 ?� "7�.�# )�#��8+.�D-��/������0I)�.�"# ��.++�'��.+$!%�0' A223222 (�"+!��.$"��+!�-;6�?�!!��*+$.�� 03<223222O�!.+/�9/��.++8�J�K+!% 1223222 4!��."+���8+.�F�.�� �!�!9������%�)�!%�!9�+!�G+!% A123222 P�Q�6+8�G ##�E��#%��+!�-;6" �)$� 03F223222R���;ND*�.�)# "���!��J�K+!% ?KS 6�$%�!��G %9���!:+$��+8�G$�#%�!9� !%�G$���� ?KS (�)# "��N�����!9�K#� "7�.�� �-;6��+""�.:8++�G ##:�. "I 12232226�"$.��/�,����G$#��:�!�./Q /��JK+!% ?KS* �" %��9/��8#++.�.�)# "�%�JK+!% <123222
T�U VWXYXXX T�U VYWZ[YZXX T�U \YXV]Y]WZ WŶ\WY[WZ_��̀ a�T�Ubcdefgbh bcdefgbh bcdefgbh ijklmjnopqrnjql�sqonlnjt�suvwx










	Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	District Music Report
	DIstrict Tech Report
	Budget Hearing
	Superintendent Report on Goals
	Minutes from May 22, 2023
	Personnel Action Items
	Requests for Surplus
	Field Trip Request
	Elem Student Handbook
	EHS Student Handbook
	Donation from Grant PTO
	Donation from Lions Club
	CTE District Wide Action Plan
	Student Enrollment Report
	Field Trip-EHS Basketball
	Immediate Facilities Needs
	ERCM



